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To our esteemed shareholders, partners, and all employees of Phuong Nam Education

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
OF DIRECTORS

Investment And Development Joint Stock Company

SEDIDCO
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In 2024, the global economy continued to face
numerous challenges, including escalating
geopolitical conflicts, strategic competition among
major powers, and the rise of trade protectionism
policy. These factors negatively impacted global
economic growth, creating risks and uncertainties.
However, Vietham demonstrated resilience and
adaptability in this context. According to the National
Statistics Office, Vietham’s GDP growth in 2024
exceeded 7%, surpassing the target and placing it
among the world's fastest-growing economies.

In the publishing sector, 2024 marked the final year
of implementing the textbook replacement roadmap
under the 2018 General Education Curriculum, with
new textbooks introduced for final grades 5, 9, and
12. Competition in the textbook market, particularly
for English language textbooks, intensified as more
publishers participated. However, the demand for
educational books and reference materials remained
high, reflecting society’s focus on education and
learning quality.

Facing these challenges and opportunities, the
Company proactively developed flexible action plans,
focusing on maintaining market share, developing
new products, enhancing customer service, and
improving management practices. The Company
effectively organized the introduction and training of
new textbooks for final grades 5, 9, and 12 in assigned
areas, collaborating with educational institutions
and teachers in utilizing the books. Investment in
developing reference book products also contributed
effectively to the Company’s business results in the
past year.

As aresult, in 2024, the Board of General Director and all
employees of the Company made efforts in all areas
of work, recording total revenue of 1,336 billion VND
and profit before tax of 78.7 billion VND, exceeding the
plan approved by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Entering 2025, the globalsituationisforecasttocontinue
to be complex with many unstable factors. In Vietnam,
the streamlining and merging of administrative units
may create difficulties in employment and the lives
of employees. The rapid development of science and
technology, especially the widespread application of
artificial intelligence, poses a significant challenge
to products and services in the education sector.
Competition in the educational book sector, especially
English language books, is expected to become
increasingly fierce.

In this context, Phuong Nam Company will focus on
maintaining and developing the market andincreasing
market share. We will continue to collaborate, listen
to feedback, and meet the needs of educational
institutions to support teachers and students in using
the books and educationalequipment published by the
Company. At the same time, the Company will focus
on applying new technologies, improving product and
service quality, ensuring timely and effective response
to the increasing demands of customers.

We believe that with the solidarity and continuous
efforts of all employees, along with the support of
shareholders and partners, Phuong Nam Company
will continue to achieve new successes, contributing
to the overall development of the education and
publishing industry in Vietnam.

Sincerely thanks,

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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OVERVIEW INFORMATION

Trading name

English name

Abbreviation

Stock Code

Business Registration Certificate
No.

Charter capital:

Owner’s investment capital

Phone number:

Fax number

Website

Address

Logo

g 100.000.000.C

PHUONG NAMEDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

SEDIDCO

SED

0304952106 issued by Ho Chi Minh City Department of
Planning and Investment for the first time on May 9,
2007, and the 8th amendment on November 23, 2021

100,000,000,000 VND

100,000,000,000 VND

(028) 73 035 556

(028) 38 305 702

www.phuongnam.edu.vn

231 Nguyen Van Cu, Ward 4, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City,

Vietnam

imeca

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

We aspire te build a pewerful digital platform
that prevides Vietnamese teachiers with
cutting-edge open educational reseurces -
modern, forward-thiinking, and deeply reoted
in our natienal cultural identity!
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FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

SEDIDCO
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2007

Phuong Nam
Education Investment
and Development
Joint Stock Company
was established under
Decision No. 309/
Qb-UB of Vietham
Education Publishing
House. The Company
was granted business
registration certificate
No. 0304952106

on May 9, 2007, by

the Department

of Planning and
Investment of Ho Chi
Minh City.

2009

The Company is
listed on the Ha Noi
Stock Exchange with
the stock code SED
under decision No.
458/ QDSGDHN.

2015

The Company
completed the
issuance of shares
to increase charter
capital to 100 billion
VND.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

2017

The Company was
honored to be in the
top 100 enterprises
with transparent
and sustainable
Financial
Statements for the
3rd time, initiated
by Ho Chi Minh

City department of
taxation and The
State Securities
Commission of Viet
Nam.

2020

The Company
publishes textbooks
according to

the policy “One
program, many
textbooks”,
contributing to the
overall development
of the national
education sector.

2021

The Company
provides electronic
resources to support
English textbooks
and builds websites
(phuongnam.edu.
vn; phuongnamedu.
vn and
phuongnamretail.
vn), launches an
e-book system, and
an online classroom
management
system (sachso.edu.
vn).

2023 - present

The Company
continues to
promote research
and development of
electronic learning
materials, supporting
teachers and
students in teaching,...
At the same time,

the Company
publishes reference
books for preschool,
Stem and enhanced
English books to

help students
consolidate their
knowledge towards
the development of
qualities and abilities.
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NOTABLE EVENTS

Notable certifications and awards over the years:

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC 15

Year Decision Achievement
Decision No. 26/QD-NXBGDVN .
Excellent Labor Collective.
Date January 17, 2022
Decision No. 23/QD-NXBGDVN  Emulation Flag for the unit with outstanding production and
Date January 17, 2022 business performance in 2021.
2021 o Certificate of Merit from the Members' Council and the
Decision No. 32/QD-NXBGDVN ) ) ) )
Chairman of the Members’'Council for excellent achievements
Date January 17, 2022 .
in market development.
Decision No. 1654/QD-BGDBT  Certificate of Merit from the Ministry of Education and Training
Date May 31, 2021 for the collective's outstanding completion of tasks in 2020.
Decision No. 21 Date January Unit with outstanding performance in production and
09, 2023 / QD-NXBGDVN business in 2022.
2022
Decision No. 27 Date January . . . . .
Labor collective with outstanding completion of tasks in 2022.
10, 2023 / QD-NXBGDVN
2093 Decision No. 68 Date January  Unit with outstanding performance in production and busi-
26,2024 /QD-NXBGDVN ness in 2023.
2094 Decision No. 44 Date January Labor collective with outstanding business performance in

13,2025 /QD-NXBGDVN

2024.

Year Decision Achievement
Decision No. 30/QD-TCNS Date ) )
2013 Cup for outstanding achievements
January 13, 2014
Decision No. 74/QD-CTN Date Third-class Labor Medal, awarded by the President. (For
January 14, 2015 outstanding achievements from 2009-2013).
2014 o Special Excellence Cup for comprehensive business
Decision No. 74/QD-CTN Date i ) ) o
performance, leading the Vietnam Education Publishing
January 14, 2015
House.
- Special Excellence Cup for the unit with comprehensive
Decision No. 38/QD-TCNS Date ) ) ) )
2015 business performance, leading the Vietham Education Pub-
January 18, 2016 L
lishing House.
- Special Excellence Cup for the unit with comprehensive
Decision No. 31/QD-TCNS Date ) ) ) )
2016 business performance, leading the Vietnam Education
January 12, 2017 e
Publishing House.
018 Decision No. 68/QD-TCNS Date  Outstanding Unit in Production and Business Performance
January 15, 2019 in 2018.
2019 Decision No. 56/QD-NXBGDVN  Emulation Flag for the unit with outstanding production and
Date January 06, 2020 business performance in 2019.
Decision No. 1126/QD-BGDDT Certificate of Merit from the Minister of Education and
Date May 11, 2020 Training for outstanding completion of tasks in 2018-2019.
2020

Decision No. 33/QD-NXBGDVN
Date January 12, 2021

Emulation Flag for the unit with outstanding production and
business performance in 2020.

KHEN THUONG DPON VI
PAT HIEU QUA SAN XUAT — KINH DOANH
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; BUSINESS LINES AND AREAS BUSINESS AREAS
. SEDIDCD g
Providing textbooks and supplementary books for teachers and students in the Southern provinces and
cities as assigned by Vietham Education Publishing House.
BUSINESS LINES

Providing reference books related to teaching and learning for teachers, parents, and students nationwide.
The Company has many years of experience and its main business lines are compiling, editing, printing,
and publishing educational products. In addition, the Company’s business lines include:

SACH G1AO KHOA
TIENG PHAP LOP3VALOP 4

No. Business lines e o et W45 1ME B2 30 ol
mENRATE | TREMAU Glio

1 Newspaper and magazine distribution agent.

Manufacturing of office machinery and equipment (excluding computers and computer
peripherals).

3 Packaging printing; production of stationery, paper, and calendars.

4 Printing, bookbinding, gilding, and book cover dyeing services.
5  Trading of books, magazines, and discs.

6 Production of magnetic and optical discs and duplication of recorded tapes. : =

= e, LT —

— " NS THO HINH | TAG Hir
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7 Wholesale of other household goods. e ann® ool Tos

e v

8 Wholesale of other machinery, equipment, and spare parts.

TAG Hirk | TRO HiNH
el

9 Consulting and providing services for book compilation and editing, and study abroad consulting.
10 Investment consulting (excluding financial and accounting consulting).

1 Real estate business.

12 Graphic design and prototyping (excluding construction design).

13 Translation.
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INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSIk
ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATU

- smies g

GOVERNANCE MODEL

Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company is organized
and operated according to the model specified in point a, Clause 1, Article 137 of the Enterprise Law No.
59/2020/QHI4 dated June 17, 2020, including: the General Meeting of Shareholders; Board of Directors;
Board of Supervisors and Board of General Directors.

The General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders, comprising all shareholders with voting rights, is the highest
decision-making body of the Company, having full authority to decide all activities of the Company.
Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the management body of the company, having full authority on behalf of the
Company to decide and exercise the rights and obligations of the Company, except for the rights and
obligations under the authority of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors performs the task of supervising all business, management and administration
activities of the company on behalf of the shareholders.

Board of General Directors

The Board of General Directors is the executive body of the company’s daily business; under the

supervision of the Board of Directors; responsible to the Board of Directors and before the law for the

performance of assigned rights and obligations.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
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~ INFORMATION ON GOVERNANCE MODEL, BUSINESS
| ~ ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
MANAGEMENT MODEL

The Company does not have any subsidiaries or affiliated companies.

THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHARREHOLDERS

BOARD OF

SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD OF GENERAL
DIRECTORS
ADMINISTRATIVE - PUBLISHING EXPERTISE PUBLISHING SALES PRINTING AND
ACCOUNTING DIVISON DIVISION DIVISION WAREHOUSE DIVISION

ADMINISTRATIVE | PUBLISHING EDITORIAL | BUSINESS PLANNING | PRINTING MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT
| ACCOUNTING AND | ENGLISH SPECIALIZATION __ RETAIL SALES o | WAREHOUSE
FINANCE DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT DEPARTMENT
INFORMATION | COMMUNICATION AND
TECHNOLOGY GROUP MARKETING DEPARTMENT

<
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

THE COMPANY’S MAIN GOALS

Constantly innovating and creating, the Company always pioneers in
providing high-quality educational products, from books, equipment
to modern learning tools. Besides ensuring the quantity of products to
meet market demand, the Company pays special attention to quality,
with the desire to bring learners the best experience and nurture talent
right from the first pages. To meet consumer demands, the Company
constantly updates trends, designs books with eye-catching images and
rich content. In addition to traditional products, the Company also invests
heavily in developing e-books and online learning applications to support
teachers and students in teaching and learning. By applying information
technology, the Company not only creates quality products but also
builds a comprehensive educational ecosystem, closely connecting
parents, students and schools, helping the learning process become
more effective and interesting.

To maintain and expand market share, the Company continuously
develops new educational products, explores potential markets, and
diversifies its product lines. Thanks to this, the Company is confident in
maintainingitsleading positioninthe industry and ensuring a stable supply.
Concurrently, to enhance competitiveness, the Company always focuses
on market research, competitor analysis, and building transparent and
fair business policies. In addition, the Company actively coordinates with
the Vietnam Education Publishing House and local market management
agencies to proactively implement anti-piracy measures, protect
intellectual property rights, and ensure a healthy business environment.
The Company proposes strengthening management measures such
as licensing, inspection, publishing, and research to develop effective
technological solutions, minimize copyright infringement, and protect the
interests of stakeholders.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES IN MEDIUM
AND LONG TERM
In the medium-term plan, the Company will maximize existing resources to strongly develop
key business areas. The Company will constantly innovate and create to meet the increasing
demands of the market, while promptly grasping new social trends. Specifically, the Company
will focus on completing existing products and developing new ones, focusing on English books
as well as other educational materials according to the General Education Curriculum 2018;
Control the import and export progress of books well, ensuring timely and adequate supply to
educational institutions, especially during the new school year opening season; Diversify user
support methods; Continue to maintain and develop online sales channels to meet customer
needs anytime, anywhere. Promote the digitization of book products and educational resources,
and deploy digital product businesses. Research the application of Al in products, business

operations, and corporate governance.

With along-term vision, the Company is committed to providing the highest quality educational
products and services, accompanying students and teachers on the path of knowledge
conquest. The Company constantly strives to ensure its activities are always aligned with the
State’s educational development orientation by contributing products that meet practical
needs and improve education quality. The Company’s top goal is to create a solid foundation
for the development of each individual's capacity, thereby contributing to building and
developing high-quality human resources in the future.

In addition, the Company continues to build and perfect a strong digital platform, providing
open, modern educational resources imbued with Vietnamese cultural identity, to effectively
support teaching and learning in the digital age. The Company continues to build and develop
its brand, build a corporate culture, and become a leading prestigious and professional unit in

Vietnam in the field of educational publishing production and business.

Friends
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION (CONT.)

With ahigh senseofresponsibilitytothe communityandtheliving
environment, the Company always prioritizes environmental
protection and actively implements solutions to minimize
negative impacts on the environment during production and
business activities. The Company continuously improves
environmental protection standards throughout the supply
chain, from the selection of raw materials to the production
and distribution processes, to ensure full compliance with legal
regulations and minimize the use of hazardous materials. At the
sametime, the Company encouragesthe use of environmentally
friendly materials, recycling, and maximizing the reuse of
resources, contributing to the protection of the shared living
environment. In addition, the Company always maintains the
implementation of the green transition roadmap according to
the direction of the Government and the Ministry of Education,
while actively participating in communication activities and
raising awareness about environmental protection, aiming to
build a community that joins hands to protect the environment.

As a key member of Vietham’s education system, the
Company not only provides quality publications and
preserves cultural values but also actively contributes to
community development. Demonstrating social responsibility,
the Company dedicates a portion of its profits to supporting
charitable activities, assisting those in difficult circumstances,
and honoring talented students.

Toensuresustainabledevelopment,theCompanycontinuously
enhances the professional capacity of its staff while regularly
communicating internally about environmental protection
and social responsibility, aiming to build a professional
workforce with a strong sense of community. The Company
also pays special attention to the health and well-being of
its employees, creating a friendly and professional working

environment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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RISKS

Sininco

ECONOMIC RISKS

The Company’s business operations are directly
influencedbymacroeconomicfluctuations.Inflation,
interest rates, credit growth, along with constant
changes in education policies, create a challenging
yet opportunistic business environment. According
to the latest data from the General Statistics Office
of Vietnam, in 2024, Vietham'’s economy recorded
a GDP growth rate of 7.09%, a significant increase
compared to 5.05% in 2023. Notably, retail sales of
goods also recorded strong growth, especially in
the culture and education sector, with a 6% increase
compared to 2023. This indicates increasing
purchasing power and a consistently high demand
for educational products and services, creating

favorable conditions for the Company to expand

INTEREST RATE RISKS

Fluctuations in interest rates, which can reduce
corporate profits or decrease the availability of
loans for financial institutions, pose a sensitive risk to
businesses, including Phuong Nam Company. The
2024 audited financial statements show short-term
financial loans and leases indicating the Company
has loans from three banks totaling 53,417 million
VND, with the loan from HSBC accounting for the
largest portion at 27,806 million VND. The State Bank
reduced lending rates to support the economy in
2024, with an average decrease of 0.44% compared
to the end of 2023. Although the Company does not
face high interest rate risks as lending rates and the
Company'sloans have decreased compared to last
year, the risk of interest rate fluctuations remains
present and poses a challenge when market

lending rates experience adverse developments,

its market and enhance its position in the coming

years.

Solution: Amidst positive signals in the domestic
economy, while carefully assessing potential risks
such as macroeconomic fluctuations, geopolitical
tensions in certain regions globally, and increasing
inflationary pressure, the Company remains
adaptable and adjusts its business strategies to
achieve the goals set at the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The Company will closely monitor
market developments, promptly seize opportunities,
and identify new challenges to make appropriate
business decisions, ensuring the Company’s

stability and sustainable development.

especially with projected interest rate increases
in 2025 within the global context and balance in

operational targets

Solution: To ensure financial stability and optimize
profits, the Company’s management has decided
to prioritize short-term loans with fixed interest rates.
This decision is based on a thorough assessment of
the financial market situation and aims to mitigate
risks caused by interest rate fluctuations. In addition,
the Company has also developed a detailed loan
interest payment plan and closely monitors market
developments to promptly adjust its financial
strategy, ensuring capital is always used effectively

and maximizes benefits for investors.
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RISKS (CONT.)
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COPYRIGHT RISKS

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

The publishing market is becoming increasingly attractive and drawing many publishers, however, this

also entails many challenges regarding copyright. Specifically, the widespread prevalence of pirated

books, poor quality, and copyright infringement on digital platforms has negatively impacted user

experience and publisher reputation.

Solution: To address this situation, the Company
actively coordinates with the Vietham Education
Publishing House and local market management
agencies to detect and penalize establishments
trading in counterfeit books. At the same time, the
Company always strictly adheres to copyright
regulations, signs clear contracts with authors
and partners, and participates in activities to raise
awareness of copyright protection. In addition, the
Company is also developing electronic learning
products with high security features to prevent
unauthorized copying. Through these efforts, the
Company not only protects its legitimate interests
but also contributes to building a healthy publishing
environment that respects intellectual property rights.

COMPETITIVE RISKS

In the context of integration and development,
the commercialization of education is becoming
increasingly vibrant, requiring companies like Phuong
Nam Company to constantly improve product
quality, from textbooks and educational equipment
to learning materials, to compete effectively in the
market. Besides ensuring quality, production and
printing costs are also important factors that need
careful consideration. Competition continues to be
a major challenge for the Company as more and
more publishers enter the textbook market, especially

English books.

Solution: To maintain its competitive position,
the Company constantly innovates, integrates
new technologies, and updates market trends.
Adjusting prices to suit each customer segment,
combined with forecasting and market research
activities, is one of the Company’s important
strategies. Concurrently, the strong development
of e-books and reading devices like Kindle has
created great opportunities for the publishing
industry. Recognizing the importance of this
trend, the Company has invested in developing
electronic products to meet the increasingly
diverse reading needs of readers and affirm its

pioneering position in the education sector.
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INVENTORY RISKS

In the context of constantly innovating education
and rapidly changing market demands, inventory
management becomes a major challenge for
businesses like Phuong Nam Company. The
backlog of books, especially in the context of the
increasing popularity of e-reading, not only wastes
resources but also affects business efficiency. In
the Company’s 2024 audited financial statements,
inventory decreased by 10,109 million VND
compared to the previous year, showing that the
Company reduced inventory backlog pressure in
2024. However, with the specific nature of operating
in the book distribution and trading sector, the
Company will still face inventory risks, especially
as the increasing trend of favoring e-reading also

impacts the inventory situation.

LEGAL RISKS

To mitigate legal issues and operate lawfully,
the Company consistently complies with current
regulations. Phuong Nam Company, operatingin the
production, service, and distribution of educational
products, adheres to Viethamese laws such as
the Law on Enterprises, Law on Tax Administration,
Law on Publication, Law on Education, Law on
Intellectual Property, and other relevant legal
documents. The Company regularly updates its
policies in accordance with the laws governing
enterprises and its business sectors. In 2024, there
were several innovations in the education sector,
including Notice 522/TB-VPCP dated November 14,
2024, which introduced solutions for educational
and training innovation following Conclusion 91-KL/
TW. These guidelines have assisted the Company
in developing new product and business plans
aligned with overall objectives. Furthermore, as
a joint-stock company listed on the Hanoi Stock
Exchange, all Company activities are governed by

legal documents, including the Law on Enterprises,

Solution: To cope with this situation, the Company
has proactively implemented solutions to optimize
applying
information technology to analyze market data,

inventory management, including
forecast demand, and adjust production plans
flexibly. By cooperating closely with local book
publishing units, the Company can access the
most accurate and up-to-date information about
the market, thereby making effective business
decisions. At the same time, investing in a modern
warehouse management system also helps the
Company preserve products better, minimizing
damage and loss of goods. As a result, the
Company not only minimizes inventory risks but
also improves business efficiency, better meeting

customer needs.

the Law on Securities, and related legal documents
and guiding circulars. Notably, with the goal of
upgrading the stock market in 2025, the State
Securities Commission will implement numerous
changes in legal documents and policies related
to the securities market. On September 18, 2024,
Circular 68/2024/TT-BTC was issued, stipulating the
roadmap for English disclosure for listed companies
and public companies. These new 2024 regulations
present challenges that require the Company’s

thorough understanding and compliance.

Solution: To minimize legal risks, the Company
maintains continuous monitoring, research, and
timely updates of relevant legal documents,
proactively seeks expert advice when necessary,
maximizes

ensures  full compliance, and

opportunities arising from new policies.
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~ ASSESSMENT OF OPERATING RESULTS 2024

Total revenue (*) 1,043,756 1,336,474 128.04%
Revenue from sales and services provision 1,050,477 1,337,505 127.32%
Revenue deductions 9,313 6,271 67.34%
Net revenue from sales & services 1,041,164 1,331,234 127.86%

(*) Total Revenue = Net revenue from sale and service provision + Financial income + Other income

In 2024, the publishing industry in Vietnam

B(O SACH TIENG ANH WONDERFUL LIFE

continued to  experience  significant
changes as it entered the final stage of
the textbook reform roadmap under the
2018 General Education Program. The
implementation of new textbooks for grades
5, 9, and 12 generated substantial demand
in the educational book market, while also
intensifying competition among publishing
houses, particularly in the English textbook
segment.In addition, the rapid advancement
of digital technology has accelerated the

popularity of e-books and online learning
platforms, compelling businesses in the industry to innovate in order to adapt to modern consumption
trends. Against this backdrop, Phuong Nam Company had a year of remarkable efforts, delivering positive
business results that reflect its agile adaptability and sound development strategy.

Regarding business operations, the Company recorded total revenue of 1,336,474 million VND, up 28.04%
compared to 2023. Revenue from goods sold and services rendered reached 1,337,505 million VND,
an increase of 27.32% year-on-year, thanks to the Company’s strong book distribution efforts and the
introduction of new products. Revenue deductions declined by 32.66% compared to the previous year,
amounting to 6,271 million VND, indicating effective measures in cost control and sales optimization. As a
result, net revenue from goods sold and services rendered amounted to 1,331,234 million VND, up 27.86%
from 2023, reflecting outstanding operational performance and sustainable growth potential.
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ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES

LIST OF BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS 2024

as of January 22, 2025

Number of shares

No. Member Position
owned

Percentage

) 25,000 (individual)  0.25% (individual)
Board of Directors’ members

1 Ms. Le Phuong Mai N
g and General Director 1,084,750 10.85%

(representative) (representative)

2 Ms. MaiNgoc Lien Deputy General Director 10,500 (individual)  0.105% (individual)

3 Mrs. Bui Thu Giang Deputy General Director 9,200 (individual) 0.092% (individual)

Board of Directors’ members
4 Mr. Nguyen Phong Yen . - -
and Deputy General Director

5 Ms. Pham Lan Anh Chief Accountant - -

PROFILES OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
Ms. Le Phuong Mai

Board of Directors’ members and General Director
Nationality: Vietnam

as of January 22, 2025

Qualification: Master of Business Administration

Position at the Company: BODs’ members — General Director

Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares owned

25,000 accounting for 0.25%
shares  of charter capital

Individual

Representative of Vietnam Education 1,084,750 accounting for 10.85%
Work Experience Publishing House’s capital shares  of charter capital

_

Staff of Department of Organization - Labor and Salary Department, Vietnam Edu-

Feb 1998 - Apr 2006
P cation Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh City.

Staff of Accounting and Finance Department, Vietnam Education Publishing House

Apr 2006 - Mar 2007
pr ' in Ho Chi Minh City.

Deputy Head of Accounting and Finance Department, Vietnam Education Publishing

Mar 2007 - May 2007 ) L )
House in Ho Chi Minh City.

May 2007 - 2018 Chief Accountant, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.

Sep 20,2018 - Nov 18,2021  Deputy General Director, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.

Nov 18, 2021- present General Director, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.
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Ms. Mai Ngoc Lien
Deputy General Director

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Master’s Degree

Position at the Company: Deputy General Director
Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares owned

Individual 10,500 shares accounting for 0.105% of charter capital

ng U

Officer, Research Department, Central Committee for Maternal and Child Protection - Institute of

1979 - 1987 ) ) o ) o
Educational Sciences - Ministry of Education and Training.

19872022 Officer, Early Childhood Education Research Center - Institute of Educational Sciences - Ministry of
Education and Training.

2002 - Aug 2005 Editor, Vietnam Education Publishing House in HCMC

Aug 2005 — Mar 2006 Deputy Head of Early Childhood Editorial Board, Vietnam Education Publishing House in HCMC

Mar 2006 - Jan 2008 Head of Early Childhood Editorial Board, Vietnam Education Publishing House in HCMC

Jan 2008 - Apr 2010 Head of Draft Exploitation Department, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.

Apr 2010 — Jan 2012 Head of Market Exploitation Department, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.

Jan 2012 - present

Deputy General Director, Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC.

Ms. Bui Thu Giang

Deputy General Director

Nationality: Vietnam

Quailification: Bachelor’s Degree

Position at the Company: Deputy General Director
Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares owned

Individual 9,200 shares, accounting for 0.092% of charter capital

Work Experience
Time Working Unit
June 1992 - June 2007  Officer at Vietnam Education Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh City

Deputy Head of Business planning department, Phuong Nam Education Investment And Development
June 2007 — Dec 2011

January 2012 - Nov 2021  Head of Business planning department, Phuong Nam Education Investment And Development JSC

Nov 2021 - present Deputy General Director of Phuong Nam Education Investment And Development JSC

Work Experience

T
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Mr. Nguyen Phong Yen
Board of Directors’ members and Deputy General Director

Nationality: Vietham

Qualification: Bachelor's degree

Position at the Company: BODs’" members and Deputy General
Director

Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares owned

Individual 0 accounting for 0.00% of charter capital

Work Experience

me Working Unit

Oct 2010 — Sep 2011 Art Desigh & Communication Joint Stock Company - Accountant.
Oct 2011 — Aug 2014 Ha Noi Education Development And Investment Joint Stock Company - General Accountant
Sep 2014 — Apr 2022 Art Design & Communication Joint Stock Company - Chief Accountant.

Board of Directors’ members and Deputy General Director of Phuong Nam Education

May 2022 - present
Investment And Development JSC

Ms. Pham Lan Anh
Chief Accountant

Nationality: Vietnam
Qualification: Bachelor’s degree
Position at the Company: Chief Accountant

Position at other organizations: None

Number of shares owned

Individual 0 accounting for 0.00% of charter capital

Dec 2002 - Jun 2007 Employee at Vietnam Education Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh City.
Jun 2007 — Dec 201 Accountant, Phuong Nam Education Investment And Development Joint Stock Company.

Deputy Head of Accounting Department, Phuong Nam Education Investment And Devel-
Jan 2012 - Sep 2018
opment Joint Stock Company.

Chief Accountant, Phuong Nam Education Investment And Development Joint Stock
Sep 2018 — present
Company.
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3 Workforce Structure by Gender Workforce Structure by labour
-, Seamed contract term
09 | to 3-year
ﬁwm contract
. l 1 7 m Mole
Female
Indefinite
| vearzozs |
Yeansne 7863% contract
Quantity | Proportion
(people) (%)

I By labor level e 100 nz 100
1 University and postgraduate level 68 58.62 71 60.68
2 College and professional secondary level 19 16.38 18 15.39
3 Elementary and technical workers 25 2155 24 20.51
4 Unskilled labor 4 3.45 4 3.42
] By gender e 100 nz 100
1 Male 73 62.93 72 61.54
2 Female 43 37.07 45 38.46
] By labor contract term 116 100 nz 100
1 1to 3-year contract 23 19.83 25 21.37
2 Indefinite term contract 93 80.17 92 78.63

Workforce Structure by labor Level

3.42%

m University and
postgraduate level

m College and
profassional
secondary level
Elemeantary and
technical workers

Unskilled labor
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Leteereesaaann REGARDING SALARY, BONUS, BENEFITS, AND TREATMENT ceeen,

In 2024, Phuong Nam Company implemented policies to care for the material and spiritual lives of

ORGANIZATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES(CONT.)

employees, ensuring safety and suitability for specialized jobs. The Company focuses on occupational

safety, fire prevention and fighting, natural disaster prevention, termite control, organizing fire prevention

and fighting training, providing uniforms, petrol allowances, and telephone allowances for certain

Policies related to employees

positions annually.

The Union Executive Committee coordinated with the Company’s Board of General Director to take care
REGARDING RECRUITMENT ) ) . )
of gifts for employees on the occasion of the Lunar New Year and major holidays of the year such as

The recruitment process will be conducted fairly and transparently for each New Year's Day, March 8th, Hung Kings Commemoration Day, April 30th and May 1st, September 2nd,

position, ensuring all candidates have an equal opportunity to demonstrate their October 20th, November 20th, Mid-Autumn Festival, in kind and cash, depending on each holiday. Every

abilities. This helps create a positive work environment and equal development employee receives a gift from the Company on their birthday. In addition, caring for female employees

opportunities for all employees in the Company. The Company prioritizes continues to be one of the activities that the Company and the Union pay attention to and implement

recruiting individuals with appropriate professional competence and experience, well. In Quarter 1/2024, the Union Executive Committee conducted an assessment for the “Good Wife,

Good Mother” title, resulting in 43/43 female employees achieving the title of “Good Wife, Good Mother”
in 2023 with a reward of 300,000 VND/person (total amount: 12,900,000 VND). On the occasion of March

a positive attitude, and a willingness to learn to meet the requirements of the

production and business process.
8th and November 20th, female union members received flowers and gifts (cash) from representatives

of the Company’s leadership (male), along with warm and caring wishes to all female employees.

BREGARDING WORK ENVIRONMENT All Company employees (with 01 year of service) are entitled to participate in vacation trips according
o . . . o to the Company’s regulations once a year. In cases of force majeure, if the Company cannot organize it
Building a professional work environment is always a top priority of the Company, . . . . o .
. . o (due to epidemics, natural disasters), employees will receive financial support. Every year, the Company
so that every employee has the opportunity to shine. In addition, the Company . . . . L .

. o - . . . and the Union Executive Committee organize periodic health checkups twice a year (01 general checkup
always listens to the opinions of employees to jointly build a friendly working . .
and 01 blood test) for employees and support the cost of treatment for sudden illnesses and accidents
environment, where the full potential and strengths of each employee can be
(funded by the employer).
promoted. The Company has invested in building a green - clean - beautiful . o o . .
Activities such as visiting female employees who give birth, are sick, have weddings, funerals, or employees

working environment with modern working equipment, bringing maximum

. o . . facing difficulties are carried out fully, promptly, and thoughtfully.
comfort to employees. Internal bonding activities are focused on with diverse . o
The above salary, bonus, benefit, and treatment policies demonstrate the deep concern of the Company

forms, attracting the participation of all Company employees. . . . . » .
and the Union Executive Committee for the material and spiritual lives of employees.

R I R R I I A I T R R I I I I I N

REGARDING ENSURING FAIRNESS,
DEMOCRACY, AND CIVILITY

REGARDING TRAINING

Iy 2o, (D Cemfpeiny (e en TEhlig) FelitEs @ Mpew o Eeliy e humer In 2024, Phuong Nam Company and the Union Executive Committee actively implemented activities

Eseuiess, MESg G [EENIEmERES 6 CWEERmEit Chel MSEHeR [H #o EEllse to ensure fairness, democracy, and civility in the work environment. To ensure fairness, the Company

e D e el g e = P e el e e A (R e S (el I e creates all conditions and opportunities for each employee to work in the right profession, suitable

including management skills for the management team, customer persuasion skills for the . f . o g . S . L
including 9 ' 9 g persuasion skl to their capacity, while building a system of evaluation criteria for each job position. Democracy

SIS ety ] Epeaelies] CREHens cWsh €5 (SN CREg, [Fneigielzing CHel (Ui is ensured by organizing the annual Employee Conference, regulations are publicized within the

ey e g [ CelElier), o CenmEeny Chel o Uiln Eesuiio CemmmiiEn Clse enterprise, and employees are involved in developing the Company’s regulations such as the

ized cl i I musi t i I ith ft ) ) )
OgJEInEEE CEEsEs En e Ve MUS e ehe|Glenes, (@ @)U GmHieyEes wiih iessssel); se Collective Labor Agreement, workplace code of conduct, work instructions, etc. The Company has

Sl = ) (o GEI=res Elnte SEREr S el G R=r THelfs [ 2Iah i) ST eIy CIEEI e 12 been and is building a civilized working environment by applying the workplace code of conduct,

training courses with a total cost of 360 million VND. These activities demonstrate the deep digitally transforming corporate governance, and allowing employees to experience human

concern of the Company and the Union Executive Committee for the lives and development resources and salary management operations on a digital technology platform.

of employees, contributing to a positive and cohesive work environment. .
"g.----.c.c-c.c.c-c.c.c--.-.-.-a--.c.c.c.c.c-c.c-c.-.-.-¢-¢-a-c-c.c.c-c.c.c-c.c.-u.".

% e e e e s e s e s e s e e e s s e s e e e et s e s e e e st et s e s e e e et s s e e e s st eee s s s 0e 0 s e ®
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Total number of employees (people) n3 ne
Average income (million VND/person/
18 19,3 19,3 20
month)
Total number of Employees and Average Income
18 . n7 25
116
16 20
. - Q9
n4 18 19.3 Nz 192 -
% n2
a no
2 1o 109
108
106
104
2020 201 2022 2023 2024

mmm Total number of employees (people)

KHEN THUGNG
CHIEN SI THI BUA 2024

0]

Average income (million Vl“-mfp-.ﬁrson,’m()r-.fh}

n7z

25

Million VND
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Total assets

Net revenue

Net operating profit
Other profit

Profit before tax
Profit after tax

Basic Earnings Per Share

1,600,000

1,200,000

800,000

Million VND

400,000

0

607,018

Totol Assets

FINANCIAL SITUATION

2023 (million

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

VND)
533,248 607,018 13.83%
1,041,164 1,331,234 127.86%
57,891 78,467 135.54%
-385 201 152.20%
57,506 78,668 136.80%
41197 60,986 148.04%
3,688 5,459 148.02%
Financial Position
1,331
533,24¢
57506 78668 41197 60,986
= —
Net Revenue Profit Before Tox Profit Aftar Tox

'3 w2024

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

With the publishing industry continuing to face
fierce competition, particularly from new entrants
in the textbook and English language learning
segments, the Company proactively implemented
flexible strategies to maintain market share and
develop new products. As a result, the Company’s
net revenue reached 1,331,234 million VND, a 27.86%
increase compared to the previous year. Profit
before tax and profit after tax reached 78,668
million VND and 60,986 million VND, respectively,
representing growth rates of 36.80% and 48.04%
year-over-year, reflecting the Company’s effective
business strategies and ability to optimize financial
costs. Notably, basic earnings per share increased
significantly from 3,688 VND to 5459 VND, a
48.02% increase, demonstrating that shareholder
interests are also ensured during the Company’s
development.

In 2024, the Company maintained and expanded
its market share by investing in the development
of reference books, which contributed effectively to
the Company’s 2024 business results. The Company
successfully  implemented the introduction
and training of new textbooks according to the
2018 General Education Curriculum, expanded
distribution channels, and enhanced customer

service quality.

Total Assets
607,018 million VI

113.83%

compared to 2023

Net Revenue
1,331,234 million V

127.86%

compared to 2023

Profit after tax
160,988 million VI

4 148.04%

compared to 2023

41

Overall, with these positive indicators, Phuong Nam Company has affirmed its solid position in the industry,

creating a foundation for sustainable development in the coming years.
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FINANCIAL SITUATION (CONT.)

Maijor financial indicators

Liquidity indicators

oG B

giRD Y
Current ratio Times 1.82 1.85

Quick ratio Times 0.61 0.92

Capital structure indicators

Debt-to-total assets ratio % 4427 45.00
2

Debt-to-equity ratio % 79.45 81.81

Operating capacity indicators

Inventory turnover Times 3nm 378
3

Asset turnover Times 2.03 2.33

Profitability indicators

Return on Sales (ROS) % 3.96 458

Return on average equity (ROEA) % 14.35 19.33
4

Return on average assets (ROAA) % 8.04 10.70

Net operating profit/Net revenue % 5.56 5.89
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~ Seminen =
Phuong Nam Company'’s solvency indicators in 2024 show a significant improvement in financial
capacity and ability to meet short-term debt obligations. Specifically, the current ratio slightly
increased from 1.82 times to 1.85 times, while the quick ratio increased from 0.61 times to 0.92
times. In 2024, the Company's Liquidity Indicators
current assets increased by 428,718 5p - 186
20 182 5
million VND to 506,663 million VND, =
L6
mainly due to an increase in short-
term receivables from customers. , 12 —
1] £
Regarding short-term liabilities, the = Ja_l_’_’//
Company mainly increased short-
term payable expenses by 25,619 e
million VND during the year. 0.0
2023 2024
CUrent ratio s Quick ratio

The Company’s operating capacity indicators in 2024 show a significant improvement in business
performance and efficient asset utilization. Both inventory turnover and asset turnover increased
during the year, especially inventory turnover. Specifically, asset turnover increased from 2.03 times
to 2.33 times, mainly due to the Company’s
increase in current assets by 77,945 million Operating Capacity indicators
VND, specifically an increase in accounts 40 3.780
receivable of 94,088 million VND. The

Company’s increase in current assets during " 2335

the year aimed to finance working capital,

specifically to stock more existing and new
book products. The increase in asset turnover
indicates that the Company is using its

2023 2024

assets more efficiently to generate revenue

—rvantory Turnover Total Assel Turnover

while maintaining stability in production and
business activities.

~

Phuong Nam Company’s capital structure indicators in 2024 reflect stable management of
capital resources and financial structure. The chart shows that the debt-to-total assets ratio
remained under control without any sudden increases, indicating that the Company continues to
maintain a prudent and sustainable

financial policy. Both the debt-to- Capital Structure Indicators

total assets ratio and the debt-to- '%%%*

79.45% s1.om
equity ratio increased slightly in sox -
2024. Specifically, the debt-to-total oy
assets ratio increased from 44.27% % AA0%
to 45.00%, and the debt-to-equity mx
ratio increased from 79.99% to 81.81%.

The Company’s equity increased by ox
2023 H24

36,711 million VND due to an additional
allocation of 20,286 million VND to
the development investment fund.

et to Totol Assets Ratio Debt to Equity Rotio

The Company’'s profitability indicators for 2024 show a significant improvement in business
performance and status. The chart reflects positive growth in most profitability indicators, especially
ROAA and ROEA, indicating that the Company is maintaining the effectiveness of asset and equity
optimization. Among them, the indicator with the strongestincrease is the ROEA, increasing from14.35%

to 19.33%, mainly due to the profit after
Profitability indicators

5 80%
Oparating Profit Margin ‘ Byl
effective use of equity, maximizing profits

ot veroge Assets (ROA g
for shareholders, and maintaining g " en Averege desets (044) H
reasonable financial strategy. The ROS and

tax increasing by 19,789 million VND. The
increase in ROEA reflects the Company'’s

Raturn on Average Equity (ROAE) e e
net operating profit/net revenue slightly
increased by 0.33% and 0.62%, respectively, et Proft Margin ﬁ Yol
thanks to the Company’s effective issuance : = = Fee

strategy in 2024. w2024 w3023
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SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE, CHANGE IN
THE OWNER’S EQUITY

Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development JSC is listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange
("HNX")

Stock code: SED

Independent audit: AAC Auditing And Accounting Company Limited

Share type: Commmon shares

Par value of shares: 10,000 VND/share

Number of outstanding shares

9,271,800

Number of Treasury shares

728,200

shares shares
10,000,000
shares O share

Number of freely transferable Number of restricted shares

shares

Treasury stock transactions: none

Other securities: none

Maximum foreign ownership ratio

Pursuant to Official Letter No. 324/UBCK-PTTT dated June 13, 2022 of the State Securities Commission
regarding the dossier notifying the maximum foreign ownership ratio at Phuong Nam Education Investment
and Development Joint Stock Company, the maximum foreign ownership ratio at the Company is 0% of

charter capital.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
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List of major shareholders
Based on the latest shareholder list as of May 31, 2024

Number of shares

No Name
held (shares)

1 Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company 4,339,000

ownership

Percentage

43.39%

Shareholders structure
Based on the latest shareholder list as of May 31, 2024

Number of

Value (VND)

Shareholder type
shares

Shareholders classified by ownership

Ownership
Percentage

(%)

| . 10,000,000 100,000,000,000 100.00
ratio
Shareholders holding 5% or more of the
1 ) 5,067,200 50,672,000,000 50.67
charter capital
Shareholders holding less than 5% of the
2 . 4,932,800 49,328,000,000 49.33
charter capital
Il State shareholder 4,339,000 43,390,000,000 43.39
Il Treasury shares 728,200 7,282,000,000 7.28
IV Domestic shareholders 4,339,000 43,390,000,000 94.48
1 Individual 728,200 7,282,000,000 41.92
2 Organization 9,448,201 94,482,010,000 52.56
\" Foreign shareholders 4,192,001 41,920,010,000 5.52
1 Individual 5,256,200 52,562,000,000 5.13
2 Organization 551,799 5,517,990,000 0.39
Total (IV + V) 10,000,000 100,000,000,000 100,00
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THE OWNER’S EQUITY (CONT.)

. SEDIDCO

Change in owner’s equity:

According to information from VSDC

Registration .
i Redasons Quantity Value (VND)
times

39/2009/ Aug 07,

Initial registration Initial issuance 8,000,000 80,000,000,000
GCNCP-TTLK 2009
) . Additional 39/2009/ July 03,

Ist time revision . . 2,000,000 20,000,000,000
registration GCNCP-VSD-01 2015

Total 10,000,000 100,000,000,000

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
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ON THE COMPANY'S
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL IMPACTS
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Impact on the environment

In 2024, Phuong Nam Company continued to focus on minimizing negative environmental impacts in its
business operations. The Company has applied Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) standards to
ensure sustainable development. Specific measures include the use of environmentally friendly fuels, the
application of modern technology to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and the organization of training
programs to raise environmental awareness among employees. In addition, the Company prioritizes
cooperation with partners who have commitments and measures to reduce emissions, contributing to

environmental protection and responding to climate change.

Raw material management

In 2024, in the context of environmental issues
continuing to be a top concern globally, Phuong
Nam Company continued to implement many
measures to improve the efficiency of raw material
management in business operations. With the
specific nature of the publishing industry, paper and
printing ink are still the main materials, in which the
production and use of these two materials have
the potential to negatively impact the environment,
from the use of chemicals, emissions to impacts on
forest ecosystems. Aware of its role in maintaining
a sustainable living environment, the Company
always prioritizes cooperation with suppliers with
environmental responsibility certifications, using
paper sourced from legally planted forests or
recycled paper, and at the same time choosing
printing inks that do not contain harmful chemicals
such as volatile organic compounds or heavy metals.

To minimize waste generated during book production
and distribution, the Company has promoted
operational optimization solutions: evaluating and
selecting printers using modern, environmentally
friendly technology; establishing scientific
transportation plans to minimize fuel consumption
and CO, emissions. Concurrently, the preservation
and storage of raw materials and finished products
continue to be improved by effectively utilizing the
facilities at the Tan Phu Trung warehouse — a spacious
location equipped with a modern preservation
system, helping to maintain stable product quality,
extend product lifespan, and reduce operating
costs. These activities not only demonstrate the
Company’s responsibility towards the environment
but also represent a concrete step in the sustainable
development roadmap, linking business benefits

with community benefits
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Water Consumption

The Company recognizes that water is

m

an invaluable but not infinite resource,

and several challenges still  exist

Man Thien Warehouse VND 1,097,234 .
regarding water resources, such as
pollution, declining water quality, the
Tan Phu Trung Warehouse VND 29,248,388 . .
impact of climate change, and the
lack of preparedness to respond to
231 Nguyen Van Cu Office VND 17,261,268
water resource developments. The
Company’'s production and business
Total VND 57,606,890

activities are closely linked to water
resources, specifically, wastewater
treatment during book production requires an efficient wastewater treatment system to ensure no
environmental pollution.

In addition to the production process, the Company’s daily operations also consume a significant amount
of water, from drinking water to sanitation and operational purposes, with a total recorded cost of
57,606,890 VND for the year. Therefore, the Company has invested in an efficient water treatment system
to reduce environmental pollution and reuse water after treatment.

Additionally, the Company periodically inspects the water system for leaks, implements water-saving
measures, and installs automatic faucets with automatic shut-off mechanisms. Besides, the Company

also encourages employees to save water for the benefits and intrinsic value that water brings

ol
@ "G)
ey ﬁ e ENIN o2

‘—M ’ ‘ .lllll




ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Electricity Consumption

Electricity plays a crucial role in the Company’s production and business
activities over the years. However, improper and excessive electricity
consumption will affect many aspects of production, operation, and
business management. Therefore, the Company always prioritizes energy
consumption management with the most optimal energy reduction
measures. The Company has established an energy management policy
such as minimizing the use of unnecessary machinery during breaks;
continuously inspecting power grids at offices and workplaces, ensuring
the safety of machinery and equipment, and performing maintenance;
training employees on energy conservation in daily activities.

In addition, the Company’s Board of General Directors has developed
a plan to invest in high-energy-efficiency equipment and machinery,
utilize electricity-saving technology, and optimize the lighting system
to reduce electricity consumption. Furthermore, the Company also
encourages employees to participate in environmental campaigns such
as the annual Earth Hour movement to reduce the negative impact on

the environment and energy resources

Tan Phu Trung Warehouse VND 141,369,406
Man Thien Warehouse VND 25,751,130
231 Nguyen Van Cu Office VND 125,789,400
133 Duong Ba Trac Office VND 75,516,408
Total VND 368,426,344
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Policies related to employees

Phuong Nam Company always creates the
best conditions for employees to contribute
to environmental protection and sustainable
development of businesses. The Company's
management and employees actively participate
in environmental conservation efforts organized
by local authorities and implement environmental
protection commitments at the Company and in
the community.

At the same time, the Company implements
policies to build a healthy working environment,
including regulations on occupational safety,

health and welfare policies, work-life balance

for employees. Annually, the Company organizes
sports activities, travel programs, team-building,
and inter-departmental exchange activities for
employees to enhance the connection within the
Company.

These policies lay an important foundation
to improve the physical and mental health of
employees, thereby motivating them to work
actively and be committed to the Company. It is
also the foundation for the Company to develop
sustainably, contributing to the overall development

of society in the future.
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Report On Corporate Responsibility For The Local Community

Along with the comprehensive development of the country, and at the same time promoting production
and business activities, the Company always upholds its responsibility to the community and society to
contribute to sharing with and contributing to the local community.

In 2024, the Company donated 135,000 books to the shared library program, donated 27,000 books and
2,600 educational devices to schools, gave gifts to families in difficult circumstances, and contributed to
supporting compatriots in the Northern provinces affected by storm number 3, etc.

As abusiness unitdealingin book products and educational equipment, the Company is always committed
to accompanying educational institutions and teachers throughout the product usage process. The
Company regularly organizes training activities, seminars on request, organizes contests for teachers
and students, establishes channels to answer questions, and supports users, etc. Implementing these
humanitarian activities is the corporate social responsibility to the community, contributing to building a

compassionate and mutually supportive society.

U BAN NUAN AN HUYVEN HINH CHAN
TRUGNG TIEL B TAN THC 2
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Report On Green Capital Market Activities Under The
Guidance Of The SSC

As a public company listed on the HNX, Phuong Nam Company recognizes the role of green growth in
the economic development of an organization and, more broadly, the nation. The Company is ready and
proactive in participating in action plans related to green capital market activities under the guidance of
the SSC.
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NET REVENUE:1 ,331 ,234

MILLION VND, equivalent to 127.86%
compared to the same period last year.

TOTAL REVENUE: 1 ,336,474

MILLION VND, equivalent to 128.04%

compared to the same period last year

PROFIT BEFORE TAX: 78,668

MILLION VND, equivalent to 136.80%

compared to the same period last year.

PROFIT AFTER TAX: 60,986

MILLION VND, equivalent to 148.04%

compared to the same period last year.
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Through the digital transformation strategy of
the publishing industry, publishers continue to
apply technology to be flexible in the production
and business process and improve publications.
This demonstrates the effectiveness of applying
technology to book publishing by businesses in the
industry.

To complete the business target plan assigned
by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the
Board of Directors, the Company’s Board of General
Directors has developed many implementation
plans,includingimplementingdigitaltransformation
of enterprises according to the national digital
transformation program to 2025, with an orientation
to 2030 of the Government and the Education
sector. Specifically, the Company applies digital
technology to implement data digitization, thereby
facilitating the production of publications that meet
the diverse reading needs of society. In addition,
the Company also implements the policy of the

Vietnam Education Publishing House with a plan to

Plan 2024  Actual 2024

Indicators

Total revenue 1,031,000 1,336,474

Profit before tax 48,700 78,668

adjust and reduce textbook prices from grades 1to
12, with an average reduction of about 10%.

The Company recorded revenue and profit before
tax of 1,331,234 million VND and 78,668 million VND,
respectively, exceeding the targets set by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. This demonstrates
the positive impact of the strategies implemented
throughout the year. In addition to closely following
the textbook replacement roadmap according to
the 2018 General Education Curriculum, adjusting
book prices according to the guidelines of Vietham
Education Publishing House, the Company also
developed flexible business operation plans, cost
management, risk management, and skills training
for the Company’s management and staff. These
policies and actions are implemented to enhance
value for investors, shareholders, and positively

impact the quality of education in Vietnam.

Unit: million VND

Percento
Actual 2023

1,043,756 129.63% 128.04%

57,506 161.54% 136.80%
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OPERATING RESULTS 2024 (CONT))

The Company also implemented new processes and systems to upgrade management quality in all

aspects, specifically:
Human Resource Management

The Company applies information technology to manage human resources, including employee records
management, labor report synthesis, personnel fluctuation tracking, and employee qualification statistics.
This helps the Company manage human resources effectively and promptly while improving the employee

experience.
Customer Relationship Management

The Company establishes procedures for contract evaluation and assessment of printing and publishing
service provision capabilities. Simultaneously, the Company continues to implement marketing and
advertising plans to seek hew customers and enhance existing customer satisfaction. The Company also

uses software to manage customer information and ensure efficient and professional customer service.
Quality Management

The Company applies carefully researched standards to build and manage the quality management
system. The Company ensures compliance with these standards through continuous inspection and
improvement in the production and printing process. This helps the Company ensure product and service

quality, thereby enhancing reputation and customer satisfaction.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Implementing the State’s policy, in the 2025-2026 school year, Vietnam Education Publishing House con-
tinues to adjust and reduce textbook prices from grades 1to 12, with an average reduction of about 14%.
Therefore, the revenue and profit plan for 2025 is built based on the adjusted textbook prices.

The 2025 business plan is built on the basis of ensuring revenue and profit in line with textbook prices
applied for the 2025-2026 school year. To implement this plan, the General Director has assigned detailed
planned targets to each department and each job position and has measures to closely monitor the
implementation of the plan. As a unit with capacity, experience, and prestige, Phuong Nam Company
believes it will complete the 2025 plan, contributing to the sustainable development of the Phuong Nam

Education brand

TOTAL REVENUE

DIVIDEND PERCENTAG
1,072,00 MILLION VND 15 %

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

60,000 wuwonww
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FINANCIAL SITUATION

ASSET STATUS

Unit: Million VND

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2024

%

Value Value
- Percentage B Percentage  2024/2023
(million VND) (million VND)
Current assets 428,718 80.40% 506,663 83.47% 18.18%
Non-current assets 104,530 19.60% 100,355 16.53% 96.01%
Total assets 533,248 100.00% 607,018 100.00% 113.83%

Phuong Nam Company’s asset status in 2024 shows positive growth, reflecting effective financial
management strategies and business expansion. The Company’s total assets reached 607,018 million
VND, a 13.83% increase compared to 2023, indicating continued expansion of asset scale. Notably, current
assets recorded a significant increase to 506,663 million VND, up 18.18% compared to the previous year.
This suggests that the Company has an increasing need for working capital, especially for publications
during the year.
Conversely, non- The Company's Asset Position
current assets slightly 780,000

decreased to 100,355

million VND, down 3.47% 506,663
compared to 2023. This 500,000 428,718
decrease stems from

the Company’s focus

Million VND

on optimizing fixed 250,000

assets and the lack of 104,530 100,355
need for new long-term - -
investments during the o

year. Furthermore, the 2073 024
Company’s reduction m Current Asset @ Non- current asset

in non-current assets

contributes to reducing payment risks, especially as the Company only uses short-term debt to finance
total assets. Therefore, the proportion of non-current assets remains at a reasonable level, ensuring
balance in the sustainable development strategy.

Overall, with the strong increase in current assets and the stability of non-current assets, the Company
maintains a solid financial foundation, optimizes capital utilization, and facilitates future growth.
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LIABILITIES STATUS

Unit: Million VND

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2024

%

Value Value
- Percentage - Percentage  2024/2023
(million VND) (million VND)
Short-term liabilities 236,090 100.00% 273,150 100.00% 15.70%
Long-term liabilities - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
Total liabilities 236,090 100.00% 273,150 100.00% 115.70%

The Company’s liabilities status in 2024 shows a significant increase in the scale of short-term liabilities,
reflecting the need for working capital financing to meet expanding business operations. The Company’s
liabilities reached 273,150 million VND, a 15.70% increase compared to 2023, in wich all liabilities remains
short-term liabilities. This indicates that the Company continues to maintain a prudent financial policy,
limiting the use of long-term loans while focusing on short-term liabilities to finance operational needs
during the year. With the increase in total assets to 607,018 million VND, the increase in liabilities remains
under control and does not negatively impact the overall financial situation. The debt-to-total-assets ratio
remains at a reasonable level, ensuring the Company maintains financial balance and good solvency.

The Company's Liabilities Position

300,000 273150
236,080
o 200,000
=
-
c
g
= 100,000
0 0
0
2023 2024

® Current Liabilities  m Non-current Liabilities
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IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONA

. SEDIDCO

The Company consistently controls the quantity and
quality in inventory management to ensure timely supply
for subsequent stages. This requires the Company to apply
more modern and stringent warehouse management
methods to reduce the backlog of finished products and
goods; thereby optimizing the production and supply
process to minimize difficult-to-sell goods, meet customer
needs, maintain the Company’s image, and create a
market advantage.

Innovating communication and marketing efforts,
the Company dispatched working groups to various
provinces and cities to introduce and train teachers on
new products, as well as market Phuong Nam Education

brand publications to a wide range of users. As a result,

the Company can expand its market while raising brand

awareness and reputation among a large number of users.
Recognizing the importance of human resources for the
enterprise’s development, the Company has consistently
focused on investing in human resource development,
especially high-quality human resources, throughout its
operation. In addition, the Company has enhanced its
competitiveness and operational efficiency with favorable
welfare policies to attract and appoint highly qualified and

talented personnel to its management apparatus.

Regarding governance

STRUCTURE, POLICIES, AND MANAGE

Regarding facilities

The Company has established a
working environment and conditions
with modern facilities and equipment.
The information technology system
has been perfected to meet the
requirements of work, meetings, and
seminars, both in-person and online.
In 2024, the Company continued to
maintain offices at two locations (231
Nguyen Van Cu, Ward 4, District 5 and
133 Duong Ba Trac, Ward 1, District 8).
For the two warehouses for goods and
materials at Tan Phu Trung and 100
Man Thien, the Company regularly
inspects, maintains, and repairs
the facilities, ensuring safety for
employees and goods and materials,
while also meeting fire prevention and
flood control requirements. The retail
store at 231 Nguyen Van Cu is always
arranged and displayed scientifically
and  aesthetically to facilitate

management and customer service.

In 2024, the Company continued to implement digital transformation in governance by updating and
completing management software for human resources, payroll, administration, task assignment, and
operations. The tasks have been implemented, and the results reported and controlled transparently on
the system. The General Director conducts business operations anytime, anywhere, quickly, promptly,
and cost-effectively. With the benefits from digital transformation in management and administration,
the Company will continue to maintain and invest in improving the system'’s effectiveness in the coming

years..
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Regarding human resources.

As of the end of 2024, the Company had a total of 117 employees, of which 86 employees, accounting for
73%, held a college degree or higher. In 2024, the departmental structure remained unchanged, with the
Company continuing to consolidate personnel across nine specialized departments and one Information
Technology group.

In 2024, the Company’s Board of General Directors remained unchanged. The General Director, based
on the actual situation, updated and adjusted specific task assignments for each member, ensuring
suitability and effectiveness. The members of the Board of General Directors proactively and actively
implemented their assigned tasks, advising and proposing solutions to enhance business efficiency and
operational management.

The Company’s human resource organizational structure is refined through policies such as: recruiting
personnel with professional qualifications and experience suitable for the job position; training to
update and enhance knowledge and skills for managers and professional positions; conducting annual
performance evaluations as a basis for personnel rotation and appropriate assignment; periodically
reviewing and adjusting salary and bonus policies to motivate work, improve labor productivity, and
encourage innovation among employees.

Human resources are managed through a system of task assignment, reporting, and supervision. The work
results of each position are reviewed quarterly, serving as a basis for personnel evaluation and ensuring
the completion of the annual plan. Regarding State regulations related to employees, the Board of General

Directors has updated them promptly and fully, and annually reviews, amends, and supplements labor

regulations for suitability, ensuring a serious, fair, and disciplined work environment.
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EXPLANATION OF THE GENERAL DI
ON AUDIT OPINIONS

. SEDIDCO

According to the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,2024, the independent
audit unit, AAC Auditing and Accounting Company Limited, issued an unqualified audit opinion on the
financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024 of Phuong Nam Education Investment

and Development Joint Stock Company. Therefore, the General Director has no further comments.

ASSESSMENT REPORT RELATED TO ENVIRONMENT
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMPANY

. SENIDED 4

Assessment related to environmental indicators

Education is a field that makes many important contributions to national development. Phuong Nam
Company is one of the units operating in the field of investment and educational development, providing
books, equipment, documents, and related services. However, activities such as book production and
printing can have negative social and environmental consequences if not carefully controlled.

In 2024, the Company complied with the State’s legal regulations and ensured hygiene criteria impacting
the environment. The Company has effectively implemented internal communication on environmental
protection activities to raise employee awareness to orient environmentally friendly behaviors in daily life,
thereby spreading environmental protection activities in the community.

In parallel, sustainable development orientation has become increasingly important in the Company'’s
strategy. Therefore, the Company has strengthened control, supervision, and development of pollution
prevention measures to the environment; applied energy-saving measures during operation and applied
energy-efficient equipment and lighting systems. This ensures that the Company always prioritizes

focusing on business activities associated with economic, social, and environmental factors.

Assessment related to labor issues

Caring for the physical and mental well-being of
employees is always a top priority of Phuong Nam
Company. In 2024, the Company continued to
implement practical support policies, ensuring the
best working conditions for employees. Employees
arefully equipped with tools and working equipment,

ensuring occupational safety in accordance with

regulations. Occupational safety, fire prevention
and fighting, natural disaster prevention, and
environmental protection are emphasized with
regular training programs. The Company’s offices,
stores, and warehouses are always clean, airy, and

ensure the health of employees.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC 69

Assessment related to corporate responsibility towards
local communities

In 2024, the Company participated in many meaningful
community and social activities to promote local social
economic development. With the current difficulties and
volatility in work, the Company has implemented a plan
to support families in difficult circumstances, provide
timely assistance to poor students to overcome difficulties,
contributing to building a positive learning environment as a
solid foundation for students to develop knowledge and nurture
their souls.

In addition, the Company sponsors and financially supports
community projects and activities; allocates a portion of the
Company'’s profits to donate to the poor in the local community,
the elderly living alone, and at the same time spreads the spirit
of love and sharing to help those in difficult circumstances.
Moreover, the Company’'s employees also actively express
their views when implementing measures to minimize negative
environmental impacts on the community, such as planting
trees, conserving water resources, and committing to reducing
harmful emissions. This guides the Company’s employees to
have a sense of responsibility towards the local community

at the workplace, improve the local living environment, and

enhance the Company’s image.
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Board of General Directors

Plans and orientations of the Board of directors
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ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIREC
THE COMPANY'S OPERATION

. SEDIDCO

The Company’s goals and operational direction are sustainable development while demonstrating
responsibility to the community and society. The Company has made continuous efforts in organizing
volunteer programs and sharing love with the community in 2024, such as:

« Establishing an operational motto with full responsibility and obligation to stakeholders. This is the
Company’s commitment to joining hands in building a good and sustainable society.

« Always caring for and ensuring that the lives of employees are always improved both materially and
spiritually, building a dynamic and youthful working environment with many development opportunities.

« TheCompany hasalso carried outmany meaningful charitable activities, especially the spirit of “mutual
love and support” to help those in special and difficult circumstances through charity programs of the
Company’s volunteer team.

« Everyyear, the Company commends individuals who overcome difficulties in their studies and awards
scholarships to disadvantaged students who excel academically to encourage and support students
in difficult circumstances but with a spirit of striving to rise in their studies.

The Company always proactively develops assessments of the potential impact of products on the

environment, clearly demonstrating its positive contribution to social development and environmental

protection. This has been, is, and will continue to be the top priority of the Board of Directors in the future.

In addition, to quickly adapt to unpredictable fluctuations, the Company has performed well in risk

management. As a result, in 2024, all revenue and profit targets exceeded the plan. The Board of Directors

will continue to enhance corporate governance responsibilities, providing advisory opinions to maximize

profits for the Company in the following years.
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ASSESSMENT OF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS O
ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIREC

The Board of Directors highly appreciates the efforts of the Board of General Directors in all areas of work:
product, marketing, communication, sales and support services, and management. From the Board of
Directors’ strategy, the Board of General Directors has proactively developed action programs, closely
followed the market, effectively developed online sales channels, and innovated customer care by
creating new and useful experiences. In 2024, the Company achieved the planned targets approved
by the General Meeting of Shareholders, created jobs and stable income for employees, and ensured
investment efficiency for shareholders.

During its operation, the Board of General Directors has always complied with the provisions of the Law,
the Company’s Charter, the Corporate Governance Regulations, the Resolutions of the General Meeting of

Shareholders, and the Resolutions of the Board of Directors.

Some main tasks

« Complete and publish information in the Financial Statements in accordance with regulations;

e« The Board of General Directors has introduced appropriate business mechanisms and policies,
gradually overcoming difficulties and challenges, fulfilling the targets set by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, and the Company’s market continues to be maintained.

» The Company’s products are always stable and of high quality, and continue to be trusted by users.

« The implementation of the resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors has been carried out
seriously and effectively by the Board of General Directors.

« The financial situation and expenses are well controlled by the Board of General Directors, preventing
any damage to the Company.

* Implement well the salary and bonus policies and care for the lives of employees in many aspects; the

working environment of employees continues to be improved.
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Activities of Independent members of the Board of Directors and assessment of Independent
members on the activities of the Board of Directors

Activities of Independent members of the Board of Directors

In 2024, Independent members of the Board of Directors participated fully in the meetings of the Board

of Directors and made important contributions to corporate governance. At the same time, Independent

members of the Board of Directors also participated in giving advisory and critical opinions on the decisions
of the Board of Directors in the spirit of upholding the Law and ensuring the best interests of the Company.

Independent members of the Board of Directors are knowledgeable about the development orientation of

the education industry and the specific operations of educational book and equipment investment and

trading units. Independent members of the Board of Directors have made many positive contributions
to building the Company’s production and business strategy and plan. Independent members of the

Board of Directors perform their assigned rights and obligations in accordance with the provisions of

relevant laws, the Company’s Charter, and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. In 2024,

Independent members of the Board of Directors completed the following tasks:

« Perform the assigned rights and obligations honestly, carefully, and to the best of their ability to ensure
the maximum legitimate interests of the Company.

* Loyaltotheinterests of the Company and shareholders; do not use the Company’s information, secrets,
business opportunities, position, title, and use the Company’s assets for personal gain or to serve the
interests of other organizations or individuals.

« Providing a comprehensive overview of all stakeholders’ benefits, offering suggestions and decisions to
enhance the effectiveness and feasibility of the Board of Directors’ decisions, improving the Company’s

business performance, and ensuring the rights and interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTO
ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DII
(CONT.)

. SEDIDCO

Activities of Independent members of the Board of Directors and assessment of Independent

members on the activities of the Board of Directors (cont.)

* Independent members of the Board of Directors exercise their management function by participating
in discussions and decision-making within the Board of Directors, while ensuring that these decisions
are made fairly and reasonably.

Assessment of the Independent members of the Board of Directors on the Board of Directors’

activities

The Board of Directors’” members are individuals with professional expertise in the field of education,

relevant extensive experience, and a broad network of relationships. Furthermore, the members of the

Board of Directors are always in a learning mindset, continuously working to cultivate their leadership,

management, and operational capabilities to enhance the Company’s market position.

In 2024, the Board of Directors carried out its functions and duties in accordance with the provisions of

the Enterprise Law, the Charter, the Board of Directors’ Operating Regulations, and the internal regulations

on corporate governance. The tasks assigned to each member of the Board of Directors were completed
well and on schedule. The Board of Directors’ supervision of the Board of General Directors was carried out
regularly to ensure the achievement of strategic goals and established plans. The Board of Directors held
regular and irregular meetings to evaluate production and business results, assess business risks, and
approve business solutions within the Board of Directors’ authority. In addition, during quarterly meetings,
the Board of Directors directed and provided input to ensure the completion of the 2024 business plan. The

Board of Directors coordinated with the Board of Supervisors to strengthen internal inspection and control,

supervise and organize the implementation of regulations, and manage risks throughout the Company.

Atthe same time, the Board of Directors always closely coordinates with the Board of Supervisors to oversee

the Board of General Directors in the Company'’s operations and finances, aiming for the most effective

business goals and achieving the set objectives.

Activities of other subcommittees of the Board of Directors

Currently, the Board of Directors does not have any subcommittees. All members of the Board of Directors
are directly assigned tasks to supervise and direct the implementation of the Shareholders’ Meeting

Resolutions and the Board of Directors’ resolutions and decisions for the Board of General Directors.

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC

77




78 ANNUAL REPORT 2024 PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC 79

PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

. SEDIDCO

The context of 2025 is forecast to be unstable in terms of political, economic, and social situations globally.

In Vietnam, the streamlining and merging of administrative units will create difficulties in employment, life, * Develop new products to build a core product

and income for workers. On the other hand, the rapid and strong development of science and technology, system and enhance competitiveness.

e Training will be implemented in an in-depth

especially the widespread application of artificial intelligence, is a major challenge for educational

products and services. Besides, educational books, especially English books, are facing increasingly fierce manner, closely aligned with the specific

s b i e

Toa n.

competition in the publishing and distribution field. characteristics of each locality. Understand the

2025 is the first year after completing the 5-year roadmap for changing textbooks according to the actual needs of teachers, students, and parents

2018 General Education Curriculum, and the Company focuses on maintaining and developing the to collaborate in educational efforts within the

market and increasing market share. The Company will continue to accompany, listen to feedback and localities.

* Continue to refine the Company’s governance

needs of educational institutions to effectively support teachers and students in using the books and " :
and management mechanisms. Strengthen '('.\@_

educational equipment published by the Company. The Board of Directors directs the Company to focus

on implementing the following activities: risk management in all Company activities:

policies, business models, copyrights, markets,

* Developflexible business operation plans, adaptable to a constantly fluctuating business environment. etc.Implement comprehensive risk management throughout the Company, according to the functions

* Research and update to provide solutions, products, and services to enhance teaching and learning and tasks of each department and each job position

quality, meeting the needs of customer groups (teachers, students, parents), in line with societal * Continue implementing digital transformation according to the national digital transformation

development trends, focusing on products using digital technology, electronics, and smart learning program up to 2025, with an orientation towards 2030, as set by the Government and the Ministry of

materials.

Education. Implement green transformation, organizing production and business activities linked to
environmental protection for sustainable development of the enterprise and society.

* Provide training on new knowledge and management skills for the management team; provide training
to update professional knowledge and skills for employees; develop a succession plan.

- * Arrange human resources rationally to increase productivity and work efficiency. Research and
(o 3 M E improve policies and compensation regimes to attract and retain employees.

W HETHO wsina o " icat i i

: 1 L THO * Research the application of Alin new product development, business, and management to enhance

HoC Lito B THIET THUE
N competitiveness and business efficiency.
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Board of Directors

Board of Supervisors

Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board
of Directors, the Board of General Directors, and the
Audit Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- smies g

List of Members of the Board of Directors

As of January 22, 2025

Position

) 37,000 (personal)  0.4% (personal)
Chairman of the Board of

1 Mr. Le Huy ) . 2,603,400 26.03%
Directors (Non-executive)

(representative)  (representative)

Board of Directors’ members 650,850 6.51%

2 Mr. Dinh Gia Le

(Non-executive) (representative)  (representative)

25,000 (personal) 0.25% (personal)
. Board of Directors’ members
3 Ms.Le Phuong Mai ) 1,084,750 10.85%
and General Director
(representative)  (representative)

Mr.Nguyen Phong  Board of Directors’ members

4 - -
Yen and Deputy General Director

5 Ms. Nguyen Thi Board of Directors’ members
Thanh Xuan (Non-executive)

Mr. LE HUY
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Master of Business Administration

Position at the Company: Chairman of the Board of Directors
Position at other organization: Deputy General Director of
Vietnam Education Publishing House

Number of shares held at present

Representing Vietnam Education Publishing House’s capital: 2,603,400 shares - 26.03% charter capital

Personally owned: 37,000 shares - 0.4% charter capital
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Mr. DINH GIA LE
Board of Directors’ members

Nationality: Vietnam

Qualification: Associate Associate Professor, PhD

Pasition at the Company: Board of Directors’ members
Position at other organization: Deputy Editor-in-Chief of

Vietnam Education Publishing House

Number of shares held at present

Representing Vietnam Education Publishing House’s capital: 650,850 shares - 6.51% charter capital

Personally owned: 0 shares - 0.00% charter capital

Ms. NGUYEN THI THANH XUAN
Board of Directors’ members

Nationality: Vietham

Qualification: Master of Arts in Teaching English as a Foreign
Language

Current Position at the Company: Board of Directors’ members
Current Position at other organizations: Head of Foreign
Languages Department, Ha Noi Education Development And

Investment Joint Stock Company

Number of shares held at present

Representing Vietnam Education Publishing House's capital: 0 shares - 0.00% charter capital

Personally owned: 0 shares - 0.00% charter capital

Ms. LE PHUONG MAI
Board of Directors’ members and General Director
Details provided in Chapter II, Section: Board of General Directors

Ms. NGUYEN PHONG YEN
Board of Directors’ members and Deputy General Director
Details provided in Chapter II, Section: Board of General Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT.) In 2024, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings. The specific content of the meetings and the corresponding

Resolutions issued are as follows
. SEDIDCD

List of changes in Board of Directors members during the year: None Num B

Resolu-tions/

Activities of the Board of Directors Decisions

Agreement on organizing the 2024 An-
February 19, . .
1 OI/NQ—SED—HDQT nual General Meeting of Shareholders: time, 100%

the Charter, the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors, and the internal regulations on 2024

In 2024, the Board of Directors performed its functions and duties in accordance with the Law on Enterprises,

location, and meeting agenda.

corporate governance. The tasks assigned to each member of the Board of Directors were completed
Approval of documents for the 2024 An-nual

well and on schedule. The Board of Directors held regular and irregular meetings to evaluate production . . .
General Meeting of Shareholders, in-cluding:

and business results, assess business risks, and approve solutions within the Board’s authority. .
Draft agenda, reports, proposals submitted to

In addition, during the quarterly meetings, the Board of Directors directed and provided opinions to ensure 2 03/NQ-SED-HBQT  March 25,2024 . . . 100%
the General Meeting, working regulations, and

the overall business plan for 2024. At the same time, the Board of Directors coordinated with the Board of .
other documents related to the organization

Supervisors to strengthen internal inspection and control, supervise, and organize the implementation of )
of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

regulations and risk management throughout the Company. R . R

Assignment of personnel to participate in

3 04/NQ-SED-HDPQT March 25,2024 the organization of the 2024 Annual General 100%
Number of

Meeting of Shareholders.

Board of Direc-tors’ meetings

Position Approval of Q1/2024 roduction and
members attended by Board 4 05/NQ-SED-HPQT  March 25,2024 pp. P 100%
of Directars business results and Q2/2024 work plan.

Chairman of the Board of Approval of the policy of appointing

1 Mr.leHuy . 06/06 100% - 06/NQ-SED- management personnel, with the ap-
Directors 5 March 25, 2024 i ° p o pl 100%
. - Board of Directors’ HBQT pointment decision signed by the Gen-era
2 Mr.Dinh Gia Le 06/06 100% - Director.

members

Board of Directors’ Approval of the plan to pay 2023 dividends

3 Ms. Le Phuong Mai members, General 06/06 100% B 6  17/NQ-SED-HOQT May 14, 2024 in cash: implementation ratio of 15%; last 100%

Director registration date: May 31, 2024; payment

date: June 14, 2024,

Board of Directors’
Mr. Nguyen Phong
4 members, Deputy 06/06 100% -
Yen
General Director

Ms. Nguyen Thi Board of Directors’

>
5 06/06 100% - H Ud N G

Thanh Xuan members b 4 - i }
. off & Al z- "a\1 VU
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Number of

Resolu-tions/

Decisions

18/NQ-SED-
HDQT

20/NQ-SED-
HDQT
22/NQ-SED-
HDQT

24/NQ-SED-
HBPQT

26/NQ-SED-
HPQT

27/NQ-SED-
HDQT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CON1

May 14,
2024

July 15,
2024
September
30,2024

December
4,2024

December
25,2024

December
25, 2024

Agreement on selecting AAC Auditing and
Accounting Company Limited as the audi-tor for
the Company's 2024 Financial Statements.
Approval of Q2/2024 production and busi-ness
results and Q3/2024 work plan.

Approval of Q3/2024 production and busi-ness
results and Q4/2024 work plan.

Approval of the change in internal per-sons: Ms.
Nguyen Minh Trang ceases to be the Company's
Corporate Governance Officer and Company
Secretary; appoint-ment of Ms. Ngo Hoai Giang
as the Com-pany's Corporate Governance
Officer and Company Secretary.

Approval of 2024 production and business
results and 2025 work plan.

Approval of the policy of appointing
management personnel, with the ap-pointment

decision signed by the Gen-eral Director.

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SEninco

Activities of the Board of Supervisors

Always complying with the regulations of the Company’s Charter and the Enterprise Law, the activities of
the Board of Supervisors have been effective, favorable, and suitable to the Company's situation.

The Board of Supervisors has performed its supervisory duties over production and business activities by
periodically reviewing financial reports prepared by the Board of General Directors and the Accounting
Department. This includes reviewing and evaluating the implementation of business objectives.

In addition, the Board of Supervisors receives all documents and materials related to the company’s
operations provided by the Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors, facilitating the supervision
of the implementation of the Board of Directors’ decisions and the business activities of the Company’s

Board of General Directors.

Number of Board of Supervisors meetings

Number of Board
Member of the Board of of Supervisors

. Position .
Supervisors meetings

attended

) Head of the Board of
1 Mr. Do Huy Kien ) 04/04 100%
Supervisors

. Member of the Board
2 Mrs. Nguyen Thi Chanh . 04/04 100% None
of Supervisors

) ) Member of the Board
3 Ms.Le Thi Tuyet Minh ) 04/04 100%
of Supervisors

i ] i
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (CONT))

Coordination of activities between Members of the Board of Supervisors with the activities of
the Board of Directors, the Board of General Directors, and other managers

Results of the Board of Directors’ supervision of the Board of General Directors

The Board of Directors always fulfills its responsibilities and obligations as prescribed by the Enterprise
Law and relevant legal documents.

The Board of Directors promptly directs and supports the General Director in implementing the
Company’s production and business targets.

The Board of Directors regularly supervises the activities of the Board of General Directors, ensuring
that the Company’s activities comply with legal regulations, the Charter, and corporate governance
regulations.

TheBoard of Directors regularly supervises the General Directorin managing the company’s production,
business, and finances.

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the Company’s quarterly and annual production and
business results reports.

Assessment of the Board of Directors and Board of Management’s activities in 2024

The Board of Directors and the Board of General Directors have fully complied with legal regulations
in management and administration. The members of the Board of Directors, the Board of General
Directors, and management officials have properly performed their assigned functions and duties in
accordance with the Charter and Resolutions approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

In 2024, the Board of Directors and Board of Management effectively fulfilled their roles in directing
and managing production and business activities, ensuring that development strategies were
implemented according to plan.

The Board of Supervisors fully attended the quarterly and ad-hoc meetings between the Board of
Directors and the Board of General Directors, reporting on the business situation of each quarter and
the objectives and directions for subsequent operations to achieve the planned targets.

In 2024, the Company did not encounter any disputes related to production and business activities.

Results of the assessment of the coordination between the Member of the Board of Supervisors,
the Board of Directors, the General Director, and shareholders

The coordination between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors, the Board of Management,
and the Company’s management officials in 2024 was carried out smoothly and closely, based on
the principle of serving the common interests of the Company and shareholders, and complying with
legal regulations and the Company’s Charter.

The Board of Supervisors received cooperation and facilitation from the Board of Directors, the
Board of Management, and functional departments within the Company in updating the Company’s
operational status, collecting information and documents for inspection and supervision.

The Company’s Board of Supervisors was invited to attend and provide input at meetings of the Board
of Directors. Reports, documents, and information regarding the meetings, as well as resolutions of the
Board of Directors, were provided to the Board of Supervisors fully and promptly, facilitating the Board
of Supervisors in effectively performing its functions and duties.
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS, AND THE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
SERIDED 4

Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits

N rost] Typeofi Year 2023 Year 2024
ame osition e of income
2 (VND) (VND)
Chairman of the Remuneration 120,000,000 60,000,000
Le Hu
Y Board of Directors Bonus 178,000,000 209,956,636
Board of Directors’ Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Dinh Gia Le
members Bonus 129,000,000 155,973,982
Board of Directors’ Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Le Phuong Mai
members Bonus 129,000,000 155,973,982
. . Board of Directors’ Remuneration - .
Bui Thu Giang
members 22,500,000 -
Board of Directors’ Remuneration 18,000,000 -
Nguyen Thi Thu Hong
members Bonus 129,000,000 -
Board of Directors’ Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Nguyen Phong Yen
members Bonus 106,500,000 155,973,982
Nguyen Thi Thanh Board of Directors’ Remuneration 54,000,000 72,000,000
Xuan members Bonus - 116,980,486
Salary and bonus of the Board of General Directors and Chief
4,342,599,250 4,836,333,938
Accountant
Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors 118,801,522 136,982,655
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS, AND THE

AUDIT COMMITTEE(CONT.)

Contracts or transactions with internal persons and related persons of internal persons

Unit: VND
Transaction Year 2023 Year 2024
Sales
Viet Nam Education Publishing Supply of educational books,
3,397,532,274 4,470,942,700
House Limited Company conference fees
Vietnam Education Publishing Supply of calendars and educational
523,250,778 -
House in Hanoi books
Vietnam Education Publishing Supply of calendars and educational
284,495,832 -
House in Da Nang books
Supply of educational books,
29,136,621,145 110,191,476,820
Vietnam Education Publishing conference fees
House in Ho Chi Minh City Revenue from textbook cover price
- 914,527,500
adjustments
Viet Nam Education Publishing Supply of calendars and educational
228,126,352 -

House in Can Tho City

books

Ben Tre Book and Equipment

Joint Stock Company

Supply of educational books

47,994,421,908

51,827,784,440

Can Tho Book and Equipment

Supply of educational books 12,337,478,241 9,842,509,301
Joint Stock Company
Educational Book Joint Stock Supply of calendars and educational
49,920,000 -
Company In Ha Noi City books
Educational Materials Joint Stock
Supply of educational books 7,089,940,736 3,359,973,500

Company

Book and Educational Equipment
Joint Stock Company of Ho Chi
Minh City

Supply of educational books

221,766,998,509

221,638,655,323

Binh Thuan Books And Equipment

Supply of educational books 13,856,013,167 12,565,111,950
Joint Stock Company
Hanoi Education Development & Supply of educational books,
4,513,637,280 4,954,954,090
Investment Joint Stock Company  conference fees
Da Nang Education Development
Supply of educational books,
& Investment Joint Stock 11,299,372,657 11,478,619,555
conference fees
Company
Giadinh Education Publishing
Supply of educational books - 10,072,560
Service Joint Stock Company
Cuu Long Books & Educational Supply of educational books,
10,459,272,471 5,646,938,542

Equipment Joint Stock Company

conference fees
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South Books And Educational

Supply of educational books 5,413,628,206 4,742,841,458
Equipment Joint Stock Company
Ha Noi Education Publishing
Supply of educational books - 2,761,200
Services Joint Stock Company
Education Publishing And In- Supply of calendars and
1,828,442,966 2,197,730,374
vestment Joint Stock Company educational books
North Books And Educational
Supply of educational books 2,057,029,800 455,968,335
Equipment Joint Stock Company
Educational Book Joint Stock Supply of materials and
199,231,201 384,202,800
Company In Da Nang City educational books
Purchasing
Viet Nam Education Publishing Purchase of educational books,
7,054,245,510 5,391,906,611
House Limited Company publishing fees
Viet Nam Education Publishing Educational book introduction
- 241,760,000
House in Hanoi fee
Purchase of educational books 594,337,445,150 685,464,220,430
Purchase of materials 1,061,700,000 100,940,000
Viet Nam Education Publishing
X L . Publishing fees, copyright fees,
House in Ho Chi Minh City 18,097,537,722 52,780,444,874
manuscript organization
Office rental costs 1571,641,270 1,776,775,499
Viet Nam Education Publishing
Reedition editing fee - 31,416,000
House in Can Tho City
Purchase of textbooks and
Ben Tre Book - Equipment Joint
supplementary teaching - 1,829,337,210
Stock Company
materials
Textbook Printing Joint Stock
Printing services 636,741,254 -
Company In Ho Chi Minh City
Can Tho Book and Equipment Joint
- 165,637,191
Stock Company
Educational Book Joint Stock
Purchase of educational books 775,505,825 683,920,000
Company In Ha Noi City
Educational Materials Joint Stock
Purchase of educational books 2,667,919,620 17,095,360
Company
. Purchase of educational
Book and Educational book 9,195,898,459 22,321,148,475
00ks
Equipment Joint Stock Company )
o . Cost of textbook price
of Ho Chi Minh City - 130,933,889
changes
Binh Thuan Books And
- 232,583,065

Equipment Joint Stock Company
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS, AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT.)

Contracts or transactions with internal persons and related persons of internal persons

(cont.)
Transaction Year 2023 Year 2024
Purchase of supplementary books
2,313,798,055 5,496,213,771
and educational books
Ha Noi Education Development
Purchase of sample books and
And Investment Joint Stock - 391,324,463
market deployment fees
Company
Royalty fees, manuscript
47,680,870,200 42,671,574,685
organization, and card costs
Danang Education Investment Purchase of educational books
. 1,417,737,307 1589,350,285
And Development Joint Stock and technical support fees
Company Market deployment fees - 778,936,200
Purchase of educational books 11,532,780,000 12,946,093,440
Giadinh Education Publishing Manuscript costs 160,340,220 238,253,558
Service Joint Stock Company Royalty fees and manuscript
12,764,016,038 10,950,568,372
organization fees
Cuu Long Books & Educational
Purchase of educational books 3,429,680,689 15,591,739,300
Equipment Joint Stock Company.
Southern Educational Equipment  Purchase of educational books
708,631,680 464,824,649
and Books Joint Stock Company and manuscript organization
Ha Noi Education Publishing
Manuscript organization fees 184,536,332 568,396,480
Sevices Joint Stock Company.
Education Publishing And
Purchase of educational books 534,917,500 261,942,000
Investment Joint Stock Company
North Books And Educational
Purchase of educational books 555,437,240 381,382,553
Equipment Joint Stock Company
Educational Book Joint Stock
Purchase of educational books 391,800,900 1,885,330,740
Company In Da Nang City
4
’
/
"
/ / / SEDIDCO
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Transaction Year 2023 Year 2024
Other
Giadinh Education Publishing  Dividends and distributed
. . ) - 192,500,000
Service Joint Stock Company  profits
Book & Education Equipment Prompt payment discount 11,404,884 282,906,146
Joint Stock Company Of Ho
Lo X Trade discounts and returned
Chi Minh city 976,359,565 1125,768,732
goods
. ) Prompt payment discount 128,692,764 100,184,203
Binh Thuan Books And Equip-
. Trade discounts and returned
ment Joint Stock Company 6,624,762 7,410,000
goods
Prompt payment discount - 76,120,285
Ben Tre Book - Equipment
. Trade discounts and returned
Joint Stock Company 264,600,160 211,277,398
goods
Educational Materials Joint Trade discounts and returned
235,538,150 1,213,600

Stock Company

goods

Assessment of implementation of
corporate governance regulations

The Company has effectively implemented
corporate governance regulations, ensuring

information  transparency,

with legal regulations, and protection of
shareholder rights through full information
disclosure, organizing the General Meeting
of Shareholders, and paying dividends on

time.

compliance

i
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TRANSACTIONS, REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS, AND THE

3 - AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT.)
©. SENIDCD g X

Assessment of implementation of corporate governance regulations SEDIDCO

Although formal training courses on corporate governance have not yet been organized, the Company
still encourages and facilitates members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the

General Director to participate in specialized seminars and dialogues throughout the year to enhance 14 ,
their governance capacity, such as: Y
No. Time ‘ Seminar/Event "
(4 (4 4
Conference on ‘Issues to note in complying with securities and stock market

regulations for public companies and listed companies; Errors in preparing and
presenting financial statements of public companies and listed companies”
1 06/2024  organized by the State Securities Commission in collaboration with the Vietnam
Association of Certified Public Ac-countants (VACPA) to guide public companies
and listed companies in enhancing compliance with securities and stock market
regulations, and improving the quality of financial statement disclosures.

Conference on "Strengthening Corporate Governance Capacity for Listed
) 07/2024 Companies” (part of the corporate governance and stock mar-ket upgrade
program) organized by the State Securities Commission with technical support

from the Vietnam Institute of Directors (VIOD).

5 08/2024 "Conference of Securities Registration Organizations at VSDC in 2024" Workshop
organized by Vietnam Securities Depository (VSDC).

‘Improving the Effectiveness of Public Company Governance through Internal BAI KM TRA
4 09/2024 Regulations” Workshop organized by FPT Securities Joint Stock Company with TI E“G ANH
professional support from the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange. - =l

Workshop to launch, introduce and guide the use of the Handbook on ESG
5 10/2024 implementation and disclosure organized by The State Securi-ties Commission

of Viet Nam.

In the field of financial and accounting management, the Company has implemented a stringent
management system that supports effective cash flow control and ensures the timely delivery of financial
reports. Alongside this, plans are underway to upgrade the system to optimize performance. These
improvements contribute to enhancing governance, increasing operational efficiency, and laying a solid
foundation for sustainable development in the future.
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AAC AUDITING AND ACCOUNTING CO. LTD

AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF PRIMEGLOBAL
AUDITING - ACCOUNTING - FINANCE SPECIALITY
Head Offige: Lot 78 - 80, April 30th Street, Hal Chau District, Da Nang City
AAL Tel +84 (236) 3 655 886; Fax: -84 (236) 3 655 887, Email; aaci@dng.mn.un ; Websita: hitp v azc.com n

No. 2492025/ BOKT-AAC
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: The Shareholders, Board of Directors and Management
Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development Joint $tock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements prepared on 12 March 20235 of Phuong Nam
Edueation Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) as sel out on pages 4 to
33, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes thercto,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation and fair présentation of these financial
statements in aceordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial statements,
and for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
ETTOT,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
cenducied our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we camply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud ar
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of

the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presemation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Lompany as at 31 Dewmbr.r ”0"’4. and its ﬂnanctal performamc :md its ca:.h flows for the ycar thcn

Do Thi Thanh Van - Auditor
Audit Practicing  Registration Certificare
Na, 1483-2023-010-1

hi Thu Hien - Deputy General Director
Awdit  Pracricing  Registration  Certificate
Mg, 0753-2023-010-1

Da Nang Ciry, 12 March 2023

T
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12/2024

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

Form B 0 - DN
Issued under Civewlar No, 200200 4/TT - BIC
dated 2201 22004 by the Minisiry of Finance

312024 01/01/2024
ASSETS Code Note VND YD
A. CURRENT ASSETS 1 506,663,217,988 4218,718,041,355
I, Cash and cash equivalents 1m 35 96,241),197.333 78,167,307,153
l. Cash [11 23,240,197 333 58,267.307 155
2. Cash equivalents 112 73000, 000,000 20,000,000,000
II. Short-term financial investments 120 - -
111, Short-term receivables 130 152,714,248,789 58,543,523, 508
I, Short-term trade receivables 121 6 157,361,676,535 63,273,603,777
2. Short-tzrm prepayments 10 suppliers 132 T 534,172,834 1,470,248,096
3, Orher shor-term receivables 136 Ba 3,599,998,981 730270072
4. Provision for short-term doubtful debts 137 9 (8,781,599,561) (6,939,607437)
IV, Inventories 140 10 156,551,584,804 284,119.977,038
l. Invemtorics 141 315,881,287,.825 325,990,072,811
2, Provision for obsolete inventones 149 (59,327,702,931) (41,870,095, 771)
V. Other current assets 150 1,155,186.972 7,787,233.654
| Short-term prepaid expenses 151 Ila |,155,186,972 7.787.233,654
2. Taxes and amounts receivable from the State 153 = .
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 100,355,100,398 104,530,253,740
I. Long-term receivables 10 21321 369,808 22.610,089,898
|, Other long-term receivables 216 Bk 22,222 369,898 22 610,089,898
2. Provision for long-term doubtful debis 219 - -
11, Fixed assets 220 54,776,206,719 57,123,397,601
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 12 54776306719 57,123,397,601
- Cost yas T8.604,311,297 78.068,127,157
- Accumalated depreciation 2 (23,828,004,578) (20,944,729 556)
2. Intangible fixed assets 27 13 % i
- Cost 228 1,839,737 688 1,839,737 688
- Accumulated amortisation 229 (1.839,737,688) (1,839,737, 688y

I11. [nvestment properties 30 -
IV, Non-current assets in progress 240 ¥ -
V. Long-term financial investments 250 770,000,000 770,000,000
1. Investments in other entities PR 770,000,000 TT0,000,000
2, Pmovisions for long-term financial investments 254 - -
V1. Other non-current assets 260 12,586,423,781 24,026,766,241
I, Long-term prepaid expenses 261 1lb 22,586,423,781 24,026,766,241

2. Other non-current assets 268 -

TOTAL ASSETS rm 607.018.318 386
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31/12:2024

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Form B 02 - DN
Izsued under Circular No. 2002004TT - BTC
dated 22/1 22014 by the Ministiy of Finance

3L122024 01012024
RESOURCES Code Note YND VND
Year 2024 Year 2023
C. LIABILITIES 00 273,149.526,052 236,089,840,210 ITEMS Code Note VD YND
L. Short-term liabilities ki) 173,149.526,052 236,089,840,210
1. Short-term trade Paj'la:;lts 3l L5 42ﬁ i;;;i; 46’;3:;;;?2 I.  Revenue from sales and service provision 01 22 1,337,505,037,043 1,050,476,210,141
2. Short-term advances from customers 3z 16 2,488 330,32 3,807.086,31 4 .
2 02 23 6,271,490 227 9,313,060,157
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State budget A3 17 21,666,609,389 11,771,364,905 St bt i
4 Pagbles toenployees 314 16.085.251 064 17114042 270 3. Netrevenue from sales and service provision 10 1,331,233,537,816 1,041,163,849 984
5, Shon-term accrued expenses 3518 92,216,567,385 66,597.575.270 4. Costof goods sold i1 24 1,021,823,786,446 781,034,714,550
6. Other shor-term payables e 19 92,591,200 377,566,680 5. Gross profit from sales and service provision 20 309,409,751.370 260.129,135,434
7. Short-term loans and finance lease Liabilities 320 20 53416594433 70,355,235,700
8 Reward and welfare fund 322 24,] 14,?0?{015 19,322,743‘1?? 6. Financial income 21 23 4‘386‘[)961583 2.551,421,806
1. Long-term liahilittes 3 = z 7. Financial expenses 2% 4,954,336,090 5,947,963 698
D. EQUITY 400 333,868,792,34 297,158.454,885 Incleding: Interest expense 23 3,308,853 208 4,583,836,084
i- OWI]E[!' lql.lih" 410 21 33313681192‘334 297,155,454,”5 1. Sclllng CXPCNscs 23 27, IS4=596,]4?1258 |29,}_29,? 16,083
1. Paid-in capital a2l 100,000,000,000 100,000,000,000 9. Administrative expenses 26 27b 76,278,479,052 69,620,608 665
- Common shaves with voiing rights dlla 100,600,000,000 100,000,000,000 10. Net operating profit 30 T8,466,685,553 57,891,266,789
- Preferved shares 4k % 3
k. Shoen g ne 2l TS0 {13, 500,000) I1. Other income il 28 354,545 455 41,151,853
3. Treasury shares 415 2 (11,541,426,210) (11,541.426.210) T —— 53 153,628,565 Gide 13
4. Development investment fund 418 21 192977228612 172,691.066,328 = P : Gl S
5. Other equity funds 40 21 1,886.452,483 1,886,452,423 13. Other profit 40 200,916,860 (384,873,260)
6. Undistributed profit 421 21 AlA18 037 449 34,193 362,784
- Undistributed profit accumulated to the end af prior 14. Accounting profit before tax 50 78,667,602,413 57,506,393,529
period #21a = 3 15, Current corporate income 1ax expense 51 29 17,682,015,126 16,308,969.090
- Unglisiri, ; i i, 22 A
01- ndistritnted Pwﬁ;{:"" .r:e current period ‘ja ";’ L M AF3a0E 284 16. Deferred earporate income tax expense 52 5 -
e 17. Profit after tax 60 60,085.587,287 41.197.424.439
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 607.018318.386 533,248,295 95 18. Basic camnings per share 030 5,459 3,688
19. Diluted earnings per share 71 30 5,459 3,688
/}{ W
s |4\
_...-—"‘-"-—'_ \‘%-\\:‘ E _’—/______._
: Pham Lan Anh Nguyen Thi Phuong S :
General Director Chief Accountant Preparer e Plitiong Mai Pham Lan Anh Nguyen Thi Phuong
General Director Chiefl Accountant Preparer

Ho Chi Minh City, 12 March 2025

Ho Chi Mink City, 12 March 2025
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FALS G TN RECATIR VRS TIER S DR BEREMESIE SRR G S E i PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AL Mgty Vi s Sopect, Ward o, Bistiot % o Cl Bt Gidy by evdied 5 112004 231 Nguyen Van Cu Street, Ward 4, District 5, Ho Chi Minii City For the year ended 3111272024
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Sl . .
: Fszued under Civeniar Na. 2000200477 - BIC NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Form B 09 - DN
For the year ended 31 December 2024 daied 22/12/2014 by the Minisiry of Finance (These nates form part of and should be read in confunction fxsued under Cireular No. 2002014TT - BTC
with the ac‘cmrpail_'ﬂlﬂg_,l'}ﬂdﬂr.‘ial’ statemenis) dated 2271272014 by the Minisiry of Finance
1. Nature of operations
ITEMS Code Year 2024 Year 2023 1.1. Overview
Hib e Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) was
established under Decision No. 303NXBGDOD dated 23 March 2007 issued by the Education
I Cash flaws from aperating activities Publishing House. The Company is an independent accounting entity, operating in accordance with
. Cash receipts from sales. service and other incame al 1,235,826,709,069 1.033.671.390.297 Business Registration Certificate (now being Enterprise Registration Certificate) No. 4103006644
2. Cash paid to suppliers 02 (L103,628283411)  (982,862,463.600) dated 9 May 2007 issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment (since its
3. Cash paid to employees 3 (37,887,487 498) (40,938,672,242) establishment, the Enterprise Registration Certificate has been amended § times and the most recent
4. Interest paid 4 {3,068, 769,346) (4,613,383,539) amendment was made on 23 November 2021, and the current enterprise identification number is
5. Corperate income tax paid 03 (10,527,876,633) (13,246,684,034) 0304952106). The Company operates in compliance with the Enterprise Law, its Charter and relevant
6. Other cash receipis from operating activities 04 I1,183,454.475 6,028,410,599 regulations.
7. Other cash payments for operating activities a7 (22,443,792 665) (17.382,347,742)
Net cash provided by operating activities n 49,453,953,989 656,247,649 1.2. Principal scope of business: Production and commercial trading of books and educational eguipment,
1. Cash flows from investing activities 2. Accounting period, currency used in acesunting
1, Purchases and construction of fixed assets and other non-current assets 21 (1,949,337,278) -
2, Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other non-curent assets 2 354,545,435 41,818,181 The Company's annual accounting period starts from 01 January and ends on 31 December.
3. Recovery of loans, re-sales of detn instruments of orher entities M = 10,000,000,000 Currency unit used for accounting records and presented in the financial statements is Viemamese
4, Dividend, profit and interest received 27 930,506,779 793,593,362 Dang (VND),
Net cash used in investing activiries 30 (644,285,044) 10,837.411,543

3. Applied accounting standards and system
111, Cash flows from financing activities

1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 162,856,564,878 204,800,048, 768 The Company adopts the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
2. Repayment of borowings M4 (179,794 806,145) (195,102 B2E,395) System, which was guided under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22/12/2014 and Circular No.
3. Dividends, profit paid to owners 36 (13,898,437,300) (13,907,700,000) 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21/3/2016 amending and adding some articles of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-

Net cash used in financing activities 40 (30.836,778,767) {4.210.479,625) BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance.

Net cash Naws far the period 30 17.972,890,1 78 7.283,179,367 4. Summary of significant accounting policies

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 60 18267307155 70,984,127 588 .

fmpacts of exchange rate fluctuations 61 - ~ 4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 70 96,240,197,333 78,267.307,155

Cash includes: cash on hand and demand deposits,

Cash equivalents are short-term investments which are collectible or mature within 3 months at the
date of purchase, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value at reporting date.

W
I 4.2 Receivables

- _/ju/rl Receivables include: trade receivables and other receivables,

¢ Trade receivables include commercial receivables generating from purchase-sale related

Le Phuong Mai Pham Lan Anh Nguven Thi Phuong . ; i
General Director Chief Accountant Preparer transactions between the Company and buyers;
Ho Chi Mink City, 12 March 2023 « Other receivables include non-commereial receivables, receivables not related to purchase-sale

and intra-company transactions.

Receivables are recorded at cost less provision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts
represents the estimated loss amounts at the balance sheet date for overdue receivables which the
Company has claimed many times but still has not collected yet or which have not been overdue but
the debtor has been in the state of insolvency, doing dissolution procedures, missing or absconding.
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4.3

4.4

Inveniories

Inventories are accounted for using the perpetual method and value of inventories is caleulated using
the weighted average method.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Caost of inventories comprises:

« Materials, goods: Cost comprises costs of purchase, costs of conversion and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the inventories to their present location and condition;

o Finished products: Cost comprises costs of direct materials and labour plus attributable overhead
based on the normal level of activities.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completing the products
and the estimated costs needed for their consumption.

Provision for decline in value of inventories is made for each kind of inventorics when the net
realizable value of that kind of inventories is less than cost.

Tangible fived assets
Cost

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of tangible assets comprises their purchase price and all the costs incurred by the Company
to acquire those assets as of the time of puiting such assets into the ready-for-use state. The costs
incurred after the initial recognition of tangible fixed asset shall be recorded as increase in their
histarical cost if these costs are certain to augment future economic benefits obtained from the use of
those assets. Those incurred costs which fail to meet this requirement must be recognized as
production and business expenses in the period.

Depreciation

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated in accordance with the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Depreciation period is in conformity with Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated
25/4/2013 by the Ministry of Finance. The Company applies the double-declining balance (DDB)
method, an accelerated depreciation approach, for fixed assets classified as machinery and equipment,
motor vehicles, and office equipment. Details are as follows:

Kind of assets Depreciation period (years)

Buildings, architectures 6-25
Machinery, equipment -6
Mator vehicles [
Office equipment 1.5

4.5 Intangible fixed assets

Cost

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
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4.6

e |

4.

4.8

The cost of intangible fixed assets comprises all the costs incurred by the Company to acquire those
assets as of the time of putting such assets into the ready-for-use state.
Amortization

Intangible fixed assets are amortized in accordance with the straight-line method based on their
estimated useful lives. Amortization period is in conformity with Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated
25/4/2013 by the Ministry of Finance.

The amertization peried for intangible fixed assets at the Company is specifically as follows:

Kind of assets Amaortization period (vears)
Software 3
Financial investments

Eguity investments in other companies
Long-term equity investments in other companies are investments which the company has no power to
control or jointly control, no significant influence aver the investees.

Long-term equity investments in other companiss are stated at cost less provision for diminution in
value. Dividends and profits received in money or non-monetary asset for the period before the
investment date shall be recorded as a decrease in value of investment.

Frovision
Provision for long-term equity investments in other companies is made as follows:

e [f an investment In listed shares or the fair value of the investment is determined reliably, the
provision shall be made based on the market value of the shares;

o If the market value of the shares 13 not identifiable, the provision shall be made based on the loss
reported in the financial statements of the investee.

With regards to the investees who are required to prepare the consolidated finaneial statements, the
provision 15 made based on the consolidated financial statements. For other cases, the provision is
made based on the financial statements of the investees.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses. These are expenditures
that have been incurred but related to the operations of many accounting periods. The Company
selects appropriate method and criteria of allocation over the period in which economic benefits are
expected to be receirved based on the nature and extent of the prepaid expenses.

Payables
Payables include: trade payahles and other payahles.

e Trade payahles are trade-related amounts, arising from trading activities between the Company and
1ts suppliers;
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= (Other payables are non-trade amounts, which are not related to trading activities, intra-company
transactions.

Payables are recognized at cost and reported as short-term and long-term payables based on their
remaining terms at the balance sheet date.

Payables are monitored according 1o their creditors, principal terms, remaining terms and original
currencies.

4.9 Acerued expenses

Accruals are recognized for amount to be paid in the future for goods and services recerved, whether
ar not billed to the Company.

4.10 Loans and finance lease Nabilities

Loans and finance lease liabilities are reflected at cost and classified into current liabilities and long-
term liabilities based on their remaining terms at the balance sheet date,

The Company monitors loans and finance lease liabilities according to their creditors, loan
agreements, principal terms, remaining terms and original currencies.

Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise Interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borowing of funds. Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense n the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they qualify the conditions to be capitalized in accordance with
Accounting S$tandard “Borrowing costs™.

Borrowing costs associated with a particular borrowing for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset
shall be capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. For general borrowing funds, the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization in the period shall be determined according to the capitalization rate, which
is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the period.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended during extended periods in which it suspends
active development of a qualifying asset, except to the extent that the suspension is necessary.
Capitalization shall be ceased when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are campleted.

411 Owners’ equity
Share capital represents the amount of capital actually contributed by sharehaolders.
Share preminm

Share premium reflects the difference between the issue price and par value of the shares issued, costs
directly related to the issuance of shares; difference between the re-issue price and book value, costs
directly related to the re-issuance of shares; the capital component of convertible bonds as they fall
due.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares are the amounts payable to repurchase the shares that the Company has issued and all
costs direetly related to this repurchase transaction.
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Frofit distribution
Profit after corporate income tax is available for appropriation to funds and to shareholders as
provided for in the Decision of Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The dividend to be paid to the shareholders shall not exceed the undistributed profit after tax and with
consideration of non-monetary items in undistributed post-tax profits that may affect cash flow and
ability to pay dividends.

4.12 Recognition of revenue and ather income

= Revenue from sales and service provision is recognized to the extent that it is probable 1o obiain
economic benefits, it can be reliably measured and the following conditions are also met:

¥ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the income statement when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer and there are no significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or the likely return of goods.

¥" Revenue from service provision is recognized when the services have been rendered. In case
that the services are to be provided in many accounting periods, the determination of revenue
in each period is done on the basis of the service completion rate as of the balance sheet date.

e Revenue from financing activities is recognized when revenue is determined with relative certainty
and it i posgible to obtain economic benefits from the transactions.

¥ Interests are recognized on the basis of the actual term and interest rates.

¥" Dividends and profits shared are recognized when the Company assumes the rights to receive
dividends or profit from the capital contribution.

s Other income is the income derived out of the Company’s scope of business and recognized when
it can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company.

4.13 Revenne deductions
Revenue deductions include trade discounts, sales rebates and sales retumns.

In case where revenue is recognized in during the year but the corresponding revenue deductions arise
after the balance sheet date, revenue shall be decreased in accordance with the following prineiples:

e [f the corresponding deductions arise before the date of releasing the financial statements, they
shall be charged against revenue of the reporting year;

o [If the carresponding revenue deductions arise after the date of releasing the financial statements,
they shall be charged against revenue of the next reporting year,
4.14 Cost of goods sold

Cost of products, goods sold and services rendered shall be recognized in the correct accounting
period in accordance with the matching principle and conservatism principle.

Costs of inventories and services rendered which are incurred in excess of the ordinary level are shall
be charged out to cost of goods sold in the period, not to the production cost of goods and services.
4.15 Financial expenses

Financial expenses reflect expenses or losses related to financial investment activities: interest
expense, interest on installment purchase, payment discounts for buyers, expenses and loss on
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liquidating, transferring investments; provision for diminution in value of trading securities, provision
for loss from investment in other entities, and other expenses attributable to investing activities.
4.16 Selling expenses, administrative expenses

Selling expenses reflect expenses actually incurred in process of selling products, goods, rendering
services.

Administrative expenses reflect expenses actually incurred related to the overall administration of
enterprises.

4.17 Current income tax expense, deferred income tax expense
Cerporate income tax expenses include current income tax and deferred income tax.

Current income tax is the tax amount computed based cn the taxable income in the period at the tax
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The difference between taxable income and accounting profit is
due to the adjustments of temporary differences between tax and accounting figures as well as those
of non-taxable or non-deductible income and expenses.

Deferred income tax is determined for temparary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
base of assets and lability and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose.
4.18 Financial instrumernts

Initial recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is recognized initially at cest plus transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The Company’s financial assets include: cash on hand, cash in bank, trade
receivables, other receivables and financial investments.

Financial liabilities

A financial lLiability is recognized initially at cost plus transaction costs directly attributable to the
issuance of such liability. The Company’s financial liabilities include: loans, trade payables, accrued
expenses and other payables,

Subsequent measurement
Currently, there has been no requirement for subsequent measurement of financial instrurnents,
4.19 Tax rates and charges payable to the State Budget which the Company is applying

s Value-Added Tax (VAT):
+ Textbooks and reference books supplementary to textbooks are not subject to VAT,
+ Reference books not supplementary to texthooks: VAT rate of 5% is applicable;

+ Calendars and educational equipment: VAT rate of 10% is applicable. During the period from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024, these products are subject to a VAT rate of 8% under the
Government’s Decree No, 94/2023/ND=CP and Decree No. 72/2024ND-CP,

+ Other activities: The VAT rates are applied in accordance with the prevailing regulations.
o Corporate Income Tax (CIT): CIT rate of 20 % is applicable.

s Other taxes, fees and chargers are fulfilled in accordance with the prevailing regulations.
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4.20 Relared parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to (directly or indirectly) control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational

decisions.

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Currency unit: VND

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Cash on hand 162,942 812 93,543,209

Demand dzposits 23,077,254,521 58.173,763,%46

Term deposits with maturities not exceeding 3 moniths 73,000, 000,000 20.000.000,000

Total 96,240,197,333 78.267,307,155
6. Short-term trade receivables

31122024 01/01/2024

Tiengiang Book and School Equipment Joint Stock Company 23,930,579,225 9,134,673,153

Cuu Long Books & Educational Equipment Joint Stock Company
Others

Total

133,431,097,310

5,219,738,735
48,919,189,387

157.361,676,535

63,271,603,777

In which, the total value of receivables pledged as collateral for loans as at 31 December 2024 is at least

VINDT0,000,000,000.
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Of which: Trade receivables from related pavties
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Relationship 3171272024 (11/01/2024
Viet Nam Education Publishing Howse Limited Company Investing company TA19.418 361 2,202,536 968
Yiet Nam Education Publishing House in Ha Nai Dependent unit of mvesting company - 565,110,840
Viet Mam Education Publishing House in Da Nang Dependent unit of mvesting company - 307255498
Ben Tre Book and Equipment Join: Stock Company Under the same investing company 154,957 731 371,129,234
Texibook Printing Joint Stock Company in HCMC Under the same investing company -
Can To City Schaol Book and Equipment 1SC Under the same investing company 5,150,327,638 1,160,899.450
Educationa! Materials Joimt Steck Company Under the same investing company 3,050,743 401 1,308,494,181
Book and Eduwcziional Equipment J5C of HOMC Under the same investing company - -
Binh Thusn Books and Equipment JSC Under the same investing comgpany &1, 760,799 -
Danang Education Investment and Development JSC Under the same investing company 3,637 815,034 1,388, 199.23]
Cuu Long Books & Educational Equipment I5C Under the same investing company - 5.219,738.733
South Books and Educational Equipment JSC Under the same investing company 2,769,899,952 1,206,008,687
Education Publishing and [ivestment JSC LUnder the same investing company 2442037317 1,406,197.299.
Tatal 14706960438 17,135,590.343
7. Short-term prepayments to suppliers
311272024 01012024
Educational Books and Learning Materials Research Institute 397,195,416 1,000,000,000
Others 126977418 470,248,096
Total 534,172,834 1,470,248,096

Of wihich: Shovesterm prépayment to suppliers being related pariies

Relationship 31122024 01012024
Educational Bocks and Leaming Materials Ressarch Dependent unit of investing company 38T, 195416 1O, 000
Instimze
Taotal 397195416 1, 1B, D00, 000
8. Other receivables
a.  Short-term
311272024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
Receivables on employess's PIT 3.071,877,981 . 522,704,935 -
Advances - - 97,627,673
Deposits, collaterals 528,121,000 - 110,412,000 -
Acerued interest receivible - - 8444 404 -
Total 3,509,998,981 » 739,279,072 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

(These notes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the financial statements)

b. Long-term

311272024 01/01/2024

Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company (*) 22,222.369,893
Long-term deposits, collaterals 5,

32,222,.369,398
387,720,000

Total 21,121,369,898 12,610,059,898

{*) This represents the capital contribution with the Education Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh City (a
dependent unit of Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company - a related party of the
Company) for the construction of an office building at 104 Mai Thi Luu, Dakao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City, under the tripartite Business Cooperation Contract No. 108HD/2011 dated 1 April 2011, and its
subsequent amendments. The total contmbuted capital amounts 1o VNDS0 billien, of which the Company
contributed YIND22.5 billion. On 1 July 2014, the parties agreed to sign Amendment No. 01, transferring
the project implementation responsibility to Viet Nam Education Publishing Limited Company, replacing
the former contracting party, Edueation Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh City. According to the audited
project completion report, the tatal final settlement value of the construction was VND49,383,044.219, in
which the Company’s contributed value was VND22,222 369,898 (equivalent to the ratio of 453%). On 15
December 2018, the parties agreed to sign Amendment No. 02 to adjust the pre-tax profit-sharing ratio as
follows: Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company (37.5%), South Books and Educational
Equipment Joint Stock Company (25%), Phuong Nam Education Investment and Development Joint Stock
Company (37.5%).

9. Provision for short-term doubtful debits

Year 2024 Year 2023
Provision for doubtful debis at the beginning of the year 6,939,607 437 2,232414,278
Provision for doubtful debts made during the year 1,841,992 124 -
Reversal of provision for doubtfu] debts during the year - 1,292 806,841
Provision for doubtful debts at the end of the year 8,781,599,561 6,939,607 437
10. Inventories
3122024 0001/2024
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Materials, raw materials 23,881, 715830 747,882,525 41,509,691,394 1,495 482,512
Wark in process 6,171,843,138 - 14395954 977 »
Finished products 58,383,238,065 16,502,008,281 89,651,583,109 10,378,174, 549
Merchandise goods 222 444,440 792 42,077,722,125 179,032.843,351 29,796,438,712
Total 315,881,287.825 50,327,702,831 325,990,072,811 41,870,005,773

. The value of slow-moving and stagnant inventories as at 31 December 2024 1s VND123,983,031,554.

. The value of inventaries pledged s cellateral for borrowings as at 31 December 2024 is at least
WND90,000,000,000,
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11. Prepaid expenses

a. Short-term
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13. Intangible fixed assets

Software Taotal
Cost
Beginning balance 1,839,737,688 1,839,737,688
Newly-purchased - -
Sold. disposed " -
Ending balance 1.839,737,688 1,839,737,688
Amortization
Beginning balance 1,839,737 688 1,839,737 688
Charge for the year - .
Sold, disposed - -
Ending balance 1.839,737.688 1,839,737,684%

Net hook value
Beginning balance
Ending balance

. Cost of intangible fixed assets fully amorrized but still in active use as at 31 December 2024 is

WND1,839,737,688.

. There are no intangible fixed assets pledged or mortgaged as collateral for borrowings as at 31

December 2024,

14, Long-term financial investments

311122024 01/01/2024
Input VAT pending amortization for unseld goods - 3,066,844.424
Manuscript preparation costs 926,226,972 4,162,460,230
Other prepaid cxpenses 228,960,000 557,920,000
Total 1,155,186,972 7,787,233.654
b. Long-term
311272024 01/01/2024
Life insurance expenses for employees [,262,150,000 2,012.350,000
Land rental expenses (*) 21,324.273.781 22014416241
Total 12.586.423,781 24,026,766,241
[*) See Note 35,
12. Tangible fixed assets
Buildings, Machinery, Mator Office
architectures equipment vehieles equipment Tatal
Cost
Beginning balance 58,772,601,672 3,960,756,230 14.961,234,687 373,534,568 78,068,127,157
Newly-purchased . - 1.949.337,278 - 1,549,337,278
Sold, disposed - - 1.413,153.138 - 1,413,153,138
Ending balance 58,772,601,672 3,960,756,230 15,497 418,827 373,534,568 78.604,311,297
Depreciation
Beginning balance 4,007,841,388 1,770,611,634 14,854,521.418 315755k 20,944,729 356
Charge for the year 2,382,538,575 1,319,925,075 532,185,057 61,779,453 4,296,428 160
Sold, disposed - - 1,413,153,128 - 1,413,153,138
Ending balance 6.390,379,964 3,090,536,709 13,973,553,337 373,534,568 23,828,004,578
Net book value
Beginning balance 54.764,760,283 2,190,144,5%6 106,713,269 61,779,453 57,123,397 601
Ending balanee 52,382,221,708 870,219,521 1,523 865,450 - 54,776.306,719

e Cost of tangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in active use as at 31 December 2024 is
WINDI12.420,272.430.

= There are no tangible fixed assets pledzed or mortgaged as collateral for borrowings as at 31 December

2004

31122024 01/01/2024
. o,
Operating % Voting rate Cost Provision Cost Provision
stitus holding

Investment in other entity
- Giadinh Education Publishing  Operating T7.50% T.30% 770,000,000 - 770,000,000 -
Service Jolne Siock Company )
Total 770,000,000 X 770,000,000 "

(*) The shares of Giadinh Education Publishing Service Joint Stock Company are not listed on any stock
exchange. The 2024 income statzment of this Company shows profit and no accumulated losses as at 31
December 2024, Therefore, the investment is recognized at cost, with no provision recorded.
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15. Short-term trade payables

31112/2024

017012024

Viet Nam Education Publishing House in Ho Chi Minh Ciry
Ha Noi Education Development and Investment J5C

14,763,189,198
2,145,332,328

1,968,329,649
2,700,296,648

CP Paper Corparation 17,086,901 634 11,765,103,607
Others 9,073,149 929 24,305,595,777
Total 43,068,573,137 46,7319,315,681
Of which: Amounts payable to suppliers being related parties
Relationship 322024 ALL2024
Vict Nam Education Publishing House in HCM City Diependent entity of investing company 14,763.189.1%6 7.568 320648
Educational Beok Jom: Steck Company in Ha Noi City Under the same investing company L76.000.000 188722955
Ha Noi Education Development and [nvestmene 1SC Under the same investing company 2,145,332398 2,700,296,648
Gradinh Education Publishing Service JSC Under the same investing company 1,959,656, 4064 4,295,528, 584
Cun Long Books & Educational Equipment JSC Under the same investing company 773,199,410 -
Ha Noi Education Publishing Services JSC Under the satne investite company - 1001995733
Educationa] Baok Join Stock Company in Da Nung City Under the same invessing company 4,703,680 189,497,633
Total 19.951,083078 16344,671.268
16. Short-term advances from customers
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Book and Educational Equipment JSC of Ho Chi Minh City - 86,745,208
Vinh Long Book and Equipment Joint-Stock Company 338835484 -
Binh Phuoc Educational Book and Equipment Jomt Stock Company 306,585,263 3

Others

1,842,509,782

3,720,241.310
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17. Taxes and amounts payable to the State budget

Total 2,488,330,529 3,807,086,518
Of which: Advances from customers being related parties
Relationship 322024 0140172024
Book and Educational Equipment J5C of HOMC Under the same investing company - 86,743,208
Taotal - 86,745,208

Beginning balance Ending balance

Amount receivable/ Amount payable  Amount actually  Amount receivable/ To
To be deducted  Amount payable in the year  paid in the year be deducted  Amount payable
VAT - 1.416,572,704 2,634.916,768 3,744,628,747 306,860,725
CIT - 7,773,858,049 17,682,015,126 10,527,876,635 - 14,927,996,540
PIT - 2,580,934,152 10,001,321,745 6,150,503,773 . 6,431,752,124
License tax - » 4,000,000 4,000,000 . -

Contractor tax = - 14,118,973 14,118,973 -
Total - 11771364905 30,336,372,612 20,441,128,128 - 21,666,609,389

The Company's tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. The amounts reported in the
financial statements could be changed at later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

18. Short-term accrued expenses

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Accrued expenses for book editing 977,682,500 1,948,652,500
342,904,176 102,820,314

Accrued interest expenses
Accrued royalty fees and manuscript expenses
Other accruals

89,142,761,812
1,753,218,897

62,153,230,600
2.392.871,856

Total 92,216,567,385 66,597,575,270
19. Other short-term payables

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Trade union fees 83,329,700 377,566,680

Dividends pavable 9,262,500 B

Total 92,592,200 377,566,680
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¢. Shares
31/12/2024 01/0172024
Shares Shares
Number of shares registered to be issued 10,000,000 10,000,000
Number of shares sold publicly 10,000,000 10,000,000
- Common shares J0.000.000 10,000, 004
Number of shares bought back (treasury shares) 728,200 728,200
- Commaon shares 7282600 728,200
Number of outstanding shares 9.271,800 9,271,800
- Common shares 9271800 Q271,800
Par value of outstanding shares: VND 10,000 each
d. Undistributed profit after tax
Year 2024 Year 2023
Profit brought forward 34,193,862,284 31467207426
Profit after corporate income tax this year 60,985, 587,287 41,197.424. 433
Distribution of profit 44,561 412,122 38,470,769 581
Distribution of prior-year profit 34193862 284 31467207426
- To development investment fund 20,286,162,284 17,539,507, 426

- Paying dividends to shareholders

13,907, 700,000

13,907, 700,000

Distribution of current-year profit 10,367,549,838 7,003,562, 155
- To reward and welfare fund 7318270474 4,943,690, 933
- I remuneration and bonus find for the Executive Board 3049279364 2.050.871.222

Undistributed profit after tax

50,618,037 449

34,193,862,284

The Company distributes the after-tax profit for 2023 and temporarily distributes the profit for 2024 in
accordance with the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Sharcholders’ Meeting No. 15/NQHCD-SED

dated 22 April 2024,

e.  Dividends

116 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
231 Nguyen Van Cu Street, Ward 4, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City For the year ended 31/12/2024
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
{These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements)
20. Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending
halance in the year in the vear balance
Short-term loans 70,355,235,700 162,856,564,878 179,794,906,145 53,416,894,433
HSBC Bank 33,899,465,804 98,010,984,562 104,104,533,893 27,805,916,473
Standard Chartered Bank 18,771,418,586 37.991,124,736 51,151,565,362 23,610,977,960
Hongleong Bank 17,684,351,310 6,854,435,580 24,538.806,890 -
Total TﬂJS.ﬁ.HS.ﬁ‘ 162,856,564,878 179,794,906,145 53,416,894,433
21. Owners’ equity
a. Statement of changes in equity
Share Share Development  Other equity's Undistributed
capital premium  Treasury shares  investment fund fund prafit after tax Total
As at 01/012023 100,000,000.000  (7L300,000)  (11,541426210)  155131,558902  1.886,452.483 31467207426 276,872,292,601
Increase in the year - g - 17,559.507426 - 41197424439 58,756,931,865
Decrease in the year - < - - 3BA70,769.581 38.470,769,581
Asat 31122023 100,000,000.000  (71,500,000)  (11,541426.210)  172,691,066,328 1,886,431 483 34,193,861,284 7,158,454,885
Asat 010112024 100,000,000000 (713000000 (11541426210)  172,691,066328 1886452483 34103862284 297138454885
Increase in the year - - - 20,286,162 284 - 60,985,587,287 81,271,749,371
Decrease in the year - - - - - 44561 412,122 44.561,412,112
Asat 317122024 100.000,000,000 (715000000  (11,541,426,210)  192,977,228,612 1,886,452,483 50618037449  133.868,792304
b. Breakdown of share capital
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company 43,390,000,000 43,390,000,000
Other shareholders 49,328,000.000 49,328,000,000
Treasury shares (at par value) 7,282,000,000 7,282,000,000
Total 1 001000!0005000 100500030005090

The 2024 Annual General Shareholders® Meeting held on 22 April 2024 approved the plan to distribute cash
dividends from the after-tax profit of 2023 at a rate of 13% (equivalent to YND13,907,700,000).
Accordingly, the Company finalized the list of shareholders entitled to dividends on 31 May 2024, payment
date: 14 June 2024,
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no

12. Revenue from sales and service provision

Year 2024

Year 2023

Revenue from publications
(Dther revenue

Total

13, Revenue deductions

1,320,664,551,394

1,025,413,982,804

16,840,485,649 25,062,927,337
1,337,505,037,043 1,050,476,910,141
Year 2024 Year 2023

Sales returns
Trade discounts

Total

24, Cost of goods sold

603,742,671

4,471,045,215

5.665,756,536 4842010942
6,271,499,227 9,313,060,157
Year 2024 Year 2023

Cost of publications

Cost of other products

Appropriation toiReversal of) provision for decling in value of
inventories

Total

991,348,264,078
13,017.915.210

17.457,607,158

741,157,559,770
21.413,047,520

14,464,107,260

1,021,823,786,446

T81,034,714,550

25, Financial income

Year 2024

Year 2023

Dieposit interest
Profits, dividends received
Payment discounts

749,562,335
192,500,000
3.044,034,248

788,412,806

1,763,009,000

Total 4,886,096,583 2,551,421,806
26. Financial expenses
Year 2024 Year 2023
Loan interest 3,308,853,208 4,583,R36,084
Payment discounts, interest on deferred payments | 645,482 882 1,364,129.614
Total 4,954 336,090 5,947.965,698
27. Selling expenses and administrative expenses
a. Selling expenses
Year 2024 Year 2023
Transportation expenses 10,295,384,188 10,407,222,093
Salaries and salary-based payments 42 157,744,080 28,023 884,620
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 3,702,763.650 3.937,104,264
Outside service expenses 65,006,270,380 53,842,657 098
Others 33,434,184.960 32,109.848.013
Total 154,596,347,258 129,22(),716,088
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b. Administrative expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023
Salaries and salary-hased payments 19,537,932,673 27,400,781 648
Depreciation and amortization of fived assets 553,664,510 2,099,945 408

Appropriation to/{Reversal of) provision for doubtful debes
Outside service expenses

1,841 992,124
1,540, 1601, 904

(1,292 806,841 )
23,746,556,138

Others 23,764,728 451 17,666,132,292
Tatal 76,278,479,052 69,620,608,665
28. Other income
Year 2024 Year 2023
Praceeds from disposals of fixad assets 334 545 455 39,151,453
Other income - 2,000,000
Total 354,545,455 41,151,833
29, Current corporate income tax expense
Year 2024 Year 2023
Tolal accounting profit before tax T8,667,602,413 57,500,393,329
Adjustments o taxable income 5,972.380,284 14,058.501,548
Increase 6,164,880,284 14,058,501,348
Decrease 192,500,000 -

Total taxable income
Corporate income tax - current year

Current corporate income tax expense

Tn which:

- Curvent income tax expense incurved this year
- Adfnsting prige-year iRcome wIx expenses to curvent-year income

oy expenses

§4,639,982 697
16,927,996,539

71,564,804 377
14,312,978,975

17,682,015,126 16,308,069,090
16,927.896,540 14.312,978.975
754,618,586 1,993,990, 115

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

(These notes form an integral pari of and showld be read in confuncrion with the financial statemenis)

30. Basic/diluted earnings per share

Year 2024

Year 2023

Profit after corporate mcome fax

Adjustments increasing or decreasing profit after tax

- Increase adjustments

- Decrease adjustments {appropriated to reward and welfare fund &
executive board fund)

60.985,587.287
(10,367,549,838)

10,367,549,838

41,197 424 439
(7,003,562,133)

7.003,562,153

Profit or loss attributable to comman shareholders 50,618,037,449 34,193,862,2384
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 9,271,800 9271800
year
Basie/diluted earnings per share 5,450 3.688
31. Operating expenses by element

Year 2024 Year 2023
Materials expenses 63,697,163,452 75,192,712,773
Labor casts 81,695,677,053 56,324,666, 268
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 4,296 428,160 6,037,049 672

Outside service expenses
Other cash expenses

Total

32, Segment reporting

Accarding to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 and the relevant guidelines, the Company is
required to have segment reporting. Accordingly, a business segment is a distinguishable component of
the Company that is engaged in providing related products or service (business segment) or providing
goods or services in a specific economic environment (segment by geographical area) and that is
subject to risks and remurns that are different from those of other business segment,

Based on the Company’s actual operations, the Management assesses that specific cconomic
environments by geographical arcas have no differences in bearing risks and obtaining returns.
Accordingly, the Company presents its segment reéport hased on business segments.

187,070,746,764
57,651,499,303

244.852,122,323
50,049,011,461

497.311,514,732

431,555,562,497
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Manufacturing Trading

Year 2024 aetivities activities Total
Revenue from sales end service provision 511,250,285,529 826.254,751,314 1,337,505,057,043
Revenue deductions 3,973,649,190 2,297,850,037 6.271,499.227
Net revenue from sales and service provision 507,276,636,339 823,956,901,477 1,331,233,537 816
Cost of goods sold 269,800,798,602 712,022,987,844 1,021,823.786, 446
Gross profit 207.475,837,737 101,533,813,633 109,409,751,370
Selling expenses 154,596,347 258
Administrative expenses 76,278.479,052
Financial income 4.886,096,583
Financial expenses 4,954.336,090
Interest expense 3, 308,853.208
Other income 154,545.455
Other expenses 153,628,595
Profit (loss) in associates =
Accounting profit before tax T TE667.602,413

Manufacturing Trading
Year 2023 activities activities Tatal
Revenue from sales and service provision 412,653,863,257 637.823.046,884 1,050,476,910,141
Revenue deductions 6,720,164,4350 2,592,895,707 0.313,060,157
Net revenue from sales and service provisior 405,933 £98 807 635,230,151,177 1.041,163,849,984
Cost of goods sold 239,846 333,910 541,188,380,640 T81,034,714,550
Gross profit 166,087,364,897 94,041,770,537 260,129,135,434
Selling expenses 125,220, 716,088
Administrative expenses 69,620,608,665
Financial income 2,551,421 8086
Financial expenses 5,947,965,698
Interest expense 4383835084
Other income 41,151,833
Other expenses 426,025,113

Profit (loss) in associates o5

Accounting profit hefore tax 57,506,393,529

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

{These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the firancial statements)
33. Risk management

a. Capiral risk management

Through capital management, the Company considers and decides to maintain the appropriate balance
of capital and liabilities in each period to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concemn
while maximizing the rerum to the sharcholders,

b. Financial risk management

Financial risk includes market risk (comprising interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and commodity
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk management: The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks af
changes in interest rates and commodity prices.

Interest rate risk management

The Company’s interest rate risks mainly derive from interest bearing loans which are arranged. Ta
minimize these risks, the Company has estimated the impact of borrowing costs to its periodic business
results as well as making analysis and projection to select appropriate time to repay the loans. The
Company mainly utilizes short-term loans with fixed interest rates. Thus, the Management assesses that
uncontrollable risks arising from fluctuations of interest rates are insignificant.

Commadity price risk management

Paper costs and printing costs are the two largest components of total production expenses. To
minimize risks associated with fluctuations in input commeodity and service prices, the Company
selects reputable suppliers, long-term cooperation suppliers and always manitors market changes.
Besides, cross-checks of prices are often done in order to ensure sufficient material sources at the most
reasonable prices. With such price management policies, the Management assesses that the Company's
exposure to uncontrollable risks of changes in commodity prices is low.

Credit risk management

The Company's customers are primarily entities within the Viemam Education Publishing House
system. These are long-standing customers with a history of timely payments. The Management
assesses that the Company's exposure to credit risk is controllable.

Liguidity risk management

To ensure the availability of funds to meet presemt and fuwre financial obligations, the Company
manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring and maintaining sufficient cash reserve, optimizing cash
flows, making use of credit from customers and counterparties, controlling marturing lizbilities in
relative to maturing assets and the amount of funds that can be generated within that period, stc.
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The Company’s aggregate financial liabilities are categorized in accordance with their maturity as

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

(These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements)

follows:

In: VND
31/12/2024 Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
Trade payables 43,068,573,137 - 43,068,573,137
Accrued expenses 92,216,567,385 - 92,216,567,385
Loans and finance lease liabilities 53,416,894 433 - 53,416,894,433
Other payables 9,262,500 - 9,262,500
Total 188,711,297,455 2] 188,711,297,455
01/01/2024 Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
Trade payables 46,739,325,681 46,739,325,681
Accrued expenses 66,597,575,270 - 66,597,575,270
Loans and finance lease liabilities 70,355,235.700 70,355,235,700
Total 183,692,136.651 = 183,692,136,651

The Company is not exposed to short-term liquidity risk. Thus the Management believes that the

Company has the ability to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company's available financial assets are drawn up on a net asset basis as follows:

31/12/2024

Within 1 year

Over 1 year

Total

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
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34. Related-party information

a. Related parties

Relatinnship
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Cash and cash equivalents

96,240,197,333

770,000,000

96,240,197,333

Financial investments . 770,000,000
Trade receivables 148,580,076,974 - 148,580,076,974
Other receivables 528,121,000 22,222,369,898 22,750,490,898
Total 245,348,395,307 22,992,369,898 268,340,765,205
01/01/2024 Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
Cash and cash equivalents 78,267,307,155 - 78,267,307,155
Financial investments - 770,000,000 770,000,000
Held-to-maturity investments - - -
Trade receivables 56,333,996,340 - 56,333,996,340
Other receivables 118,856,444 22,610,089,898 22,728,946,342
Total 134,720,159,939 23,380,089,898 158,100,249,837

Viet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company
("Viet Nam Education Publishing Housz")

Viet Nam Education Publishing House in Ha Noi

Viet Nam Education Publishing House in Da Nang
Viet Nam Education Publishing House in HCM City
Education Publishing House in Can Tha City

Ben Tre Book and Equipment Joint Stock Company
Textbook Printing Joint Stock Company in HCMC
Can Tho City Scheol Book and Equipment JSC
Educational Book Joint Stock Company in Ha Noi City
Educational Materials Joint Stock Company

Book and Educational Equipment JSC of HCMC

Binh Thuan Books and Equipment JISC

Ha Moi Education Development and Investment JSC
Danang Education Investment and Development JSC
Giadinh Education Publishing Service JSC

Cuu Long Books & Educational Equipment JSC

South Books and Educational Equipment JSC

Ha Moi Education Publishing Services J5C

Education Publishing and Investment JSC

North Baoks and Educational Equipment JSC
Educational Book Joint Stock Company in Da Nang City
ECI Group Joint Stock Company

Educational Books and Learning Materials Research Institute

Investing company

Dependent entity of investing company
Dependent entity of investing company
Dependent entity of investing company
Dependent entity of investing company

Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same nvesting company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing compariy
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company
Under the same investing company

Dependent entity of investing company
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b. Significant transactions with related parties
Particulars Year 2024 Year 2023
Selling
Wiet Nam Education Publishing House Limited Company Providing educational books and seminar fiee 4A70.542,700 3397532204
Yiet Nam Education Publishing Hoose in Ha Noi Providing calendars and educationdl books 333250778
Wiet Nam Education Publishing House in Da Nang Providing cakendars und educations| bogis x 284,495 832
Viet Nam Education Publishing House m HCM City Providing educational books and seminar fee  110.191,476,820 29 136,621,145
Revenue from adiusted rexbook cover price: 914,527 500 2
Education Publishing House in Can Tho Ciry Providing calendars and educational books - 279 125152
Ben Tre Bool and Equipment Toint Stock Campany Providing educational books and seminar fee 51,827, 784,440 47,8034 4210038
Can Tho City Scheal Book and Equipment JSC Providing educational books and seminar fee 9,842,509 301 12,337 478,241
Educational Book Joint Sieck Company in Ha Noi City Providing culendars and educational books - 49,920,000
Educational Malerials Joint Slock Compuny Previding educational books and seminas fae  3,359.973,500 T0E9840. 736
Book and Educationa! Equipment J5C of HCMO Providing educational boaks and seminar fer  221,638,655,323  221,766,998,509
Bink Thuan Books and Equipment JSC Providing educational books and seminar e 12,365,111,950 L3.856,013,167
Ha Nol Educarion Development and Investment J8C Providing educational books and seminar fee  £,954.954 090 4,513.637.280
Danang Education: Investment and Development JSC Providing edocational books and seminar fec || 478,619,533 11,299.372.657
Giadinh Education Publishing Service JSC Providing cducational books and seminar fee 10,072 560 -
Cuu Long Books & Educational Equipment J5C Providing educational books and seminar fec  5546.938,542 10,459,272,471
Sauth Books and Educational Equipment JSC Providing educational books and seminar fee 4,742,841 438 5,413,628 2046
Ha Noi Education Publishing Services JSC Providing educational books and seminar fee 2,761,200 :
Education Publishing and [nvestment ISC Prowiding calendars and educational books 2,197,730,374 1,828,441 064
Marth Books and Educational Equipment JSC Providing educational beoks and seminar fee 455,068,335 2,057,029, 800
Educarional Book Joint Stock Company in Dia Nang City Providing materials and sducational books 384,202 800 199,231,201
Purchasing
Viet Nam Edueation Publishing House Limited Company Purchase of educationa] baaks and publishin 3,361,906,611 7054245510
Viet Nam Education Publishing House in Ha Noi Educational boak introduction fees 241,760,000 .
Viet Nam Education Publishing House in HUM City Purchage of educational baoks 683,464,220,430  594.337,445,150
Purchase of mutenals 1,100,940, 000 1.061,700,000
Publishing fees, royalties, and manuscript 52,780,444,874 13,007, 537,722
preparation
Office reatdl expenses 1,776,775,49% 1371641270
Education Publishing Hause in Can The City Editing fees for reprims 31.416.000 -

Ben Trz Book and Equipment Joint Siock Company
Teatbook Printing Joine Swock Company i HOMC
Can Tho City School Book and Equigment 15C
Edixational Book Joint Stock Company in Ha Woi Ciry
Educational Marerials Joit Stock Company

Bock and Educational Equipment JSC of BOMC

Binh Thuin Books and Equipment JSC
Ha Moi Education Development and Investment JSC

Danang Education Iivesiment and Development J3C

{nadinh Education Publishing Service JSC

Cun Long Books & Educational Equipment JSC

South Books and Educational Equipment 15C

Ha Woi Education Publishing Services 15C

Education Publishing and Investment 15C

MNorth Books and Edacational Equipment JSC
Educational Book Joint Stock Company in Da Nang City

Purchase of texthoaks and reference books
Printing sendoes

Purchase of educational books
Purchase of educational books
Purchase of educational books
Expenses for changes in educational haak pr

Purchase of supolementary and educational |
Puschase of sample books and market deploy
Royalties, manuscript preparation and card
fees

Purchase of educationn] books, market depla
Market deplovment fees

Purchass of educational books

Manuscript costs

Royalties, manuscript pregaration

Purchase of educational books

Purchase of educational baoks, manuseript p
Manuseript preparation

Purchass of educational books

Purchase of educaticnal books

Purehass of educationzl baoks

1,529,337,210

165,637, 191
83,920,000
17,095,360
12321, 148,475
130,033,439
232,583,065
5,496,213,77
391324463
47,671 574,685

1,589,150,285
778,936,200
(2,946,003, 4410
238,253,358
10,950,568,372
15.591,739,300
464,824,649
568,396,480
251,542,000
381,382,353
1.B85,330,740

36,741,254
775,505,825
2,667919,620
5,195,898.439

333,798,055
A7T6R0.870,200
1A737307

11,532,780,000
160,340,220
12,764,016,138
3,429,680,689
708,631,680
184,536,332
534,917,500
555,437,240
391,800,900

35, Operating lease commitment

PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC
PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
231 Nguyen Van Cu Street, Ward 4, Distriet 3, Ho Chi Minh City Far the vear ended 31/12/2024
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
{These nowes form an integral part of and showld be vead in conjuncifon with the financial statements)
Particulurs Year 2024 Year 2023
Oithers
Giadinh Education Publishing Serviee ISC Dividends, profit received 152, 500,000 -
Book and Educational Equipment ISC of HOMC Early payment discount 282 906,146 11,404,384
Trade dissount, sales returns 1,123,763,732 976,339,565
Binh Thuan Books and Equipment JSC Early payment discount 104,184,203 128652 Tod
Trade discount, sales remems 1.410,000 6,624,762
Ben Tre Book and Equipment Joint Stock Company Early payment discouns 76,120,285 .
Trade discount, sales renirms 211,277,398 264,600,160
Educational Materls Joint Stock Company Trade discount, sales relums 1,213,600 235,538,150
¢. Tncome of key management personnel
Year 2024 Year 2023
Le Huy Chairman of the BOL Remuneration 60,000,000 120,000,000
Bonus 209,956,636 178,000,000
Dinh Gia Le Member Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Bonus 155,973,982 129,000,000
Le Phuong Mai Member Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Bonus 155,973,982 129,000,000
Bui Thu Giang Member Remuneration - ¥
Bonus - 22,500,000
Nguyen Thi Thu Hong Member Remuneration - 18,000,000
Bonus - 129,000,000
Nguyen Phong Yen Member Remuneration 72,000,000 72,000,000
Bonus 155,973,982 106,500,000
Nguyen Thi Thanh Xuan Member Remuneration 72,000,000 54,000,000
Bonus 116,980,485 -
Salaries and bonuses of the Management and Chief Accountant 4.836,333,938 4,342 599 250
Remuneration of the Supervisory Board 136,982,655 118,801,522

The Company has leased 12,571.9 m? of land at Street D4 and N2 Lot A 3, Tan Phu Trung Industrial
Park, Tan Phu Trung Commune, Cu Chi District. Ho Chi Minh City under Contract No.
12/HDTD/SCD-2018 dated 19 January 2018. The lease is for the project “Book and Paper Warchouse -
Phuong Nam FEducation Investment and Development Joint Stock Company” as per Investment
Registration Certificate No. 7731323272 issued on 25 December 2017 by the Ho Chi Minh City
People's Committee. The lease term runs from 19 January 2018 to 16 December 2054.
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PHUONG NAM EDUCATION INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT JSC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23] Nguyen Van Cu Street, Ward 4, Distriet 5, Ho Chi Minh Ciry For the year ended 31/12/2024 Ho Chi Minh City April 08" 2025
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d) LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

(These !JO.'-L‘_\'JFOJ?JE an i.u_frzgrm' pari cgf'und should be read in confunciion witth !'1'1L'ﬁrmrzr_'."uf_\'!u.'quam.y;

| Director

36. Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would require
adjustments or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.

37, Corresponding figures

Caorrespanding figures were taken from the financial statements for the year ended 31/12/2023 which
had been audited by AAC,

f
(A —
-d_._'_'___,_,_._--"_'_'_
Le Phuong Mai Pham Lan Anh Nguyen Thi Phuong
General Director Chief Accountant Preparer

—

Ho Chi Minh City, 12 March 20235
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